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Overview

It is an honor to present the Financial Report of the University for
2022/23, which reflects the exceptional expertise and dedication of all
members of the University.

Guided by health and safety protocols, we saw the safe return of our
students and staff to the campus last year. Emerging variants and
sub-variants were navigated with discipline and prudence, and
improved health conditions allowed us to ease restrictions and
increase our on-campus activities. I am grateful to every single one of
our students and staff for their thoughtful adherence to health
guidelines, which has allowed us to ensure the continuity of the
University’s educational and research mission.

Despite the continued impact of COVID-19 and the external factors,
such as inflation, rising interest rates, and geopolitics, on the
University's finance this past year, the University delivered a robust
financial performance in 2022/23 driven by income growth and
control of costs. Consolidated net surplus increased from HK$213.8
million in 2021/22 to HK$513.4 million in 2022/23. A strong balance
sheet was maintained with consolidated net assets at HK$5,107.6
million and significant levels of cash and investments of HK$5,254.1
million being held. These results ensure that we have the necessary
solid financial platform to keep investing in people and in our
strategic priorities and successfully navigate the future.
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Highlights of the Year
New Campus

With the continuous increase in the full-time student population, the
University's current campus space and facilities are insufficient to
meet the needs of its quality education. In view of this, the University
proposes to acquire an abandoned slope land at the corner of Sheung
Shing Street and Fat Kwong Street to build a new academic complex.
Positioned as “A Hub for Community Health and Wellness”, the new
campus will support the University’s education programmes and
activities to promote health and wellness for the whole community. It
will be 19-storeys tall, and built on a 3,400 m? site with a total gross
floor area of 30,600 m2.

The new campus will be designed with age- and environmental-friendly
elements, and equipped with sufficient facilities (e.g. canteen, clinic,
podium garden) and activity spaces. It will not only enhance the
community environment, but also facilitate connection, sharing and
interaction with the community. The campus development project is
in the planning stage. Public consultations were held to secure
support from the community, and a draft planning statement was
submitted to the Planning Department for review and comment by
relevant government departments before formal submission of Town
Planning Application.

Student Hostel

Hostel life is an essential part of higher education and students’
holistic development. The University is looking for suitable properties
to serve as a student hostel to enrich student life and learning,
promote cultural diversity, and nurture global citizens while at the
same time addressing the need of hostel places for international and
exchange students. The student hostel will provide reasonably priced
accommodation and learning spaces where student residents can
explore their aspirations and potential together. The site selection
and preparation work for the student hostel are in good progress.
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Highlights of the Year (continued)
HKMU Startup Fund

The University established an HKMU Startup Fund with an initial fund
size of HK$50 million to inspire and nurture its students, staff and
alumni to start their own companies, turn their creative ideas into
commercial products or solutions, and spur them to a path to
successful business. The Fund is intended to be a capital investment
for startup companies established by eligible persons associated with
the University. It will provide financing to bridge the funding gap of
qualified startup companies before they can secure sufficient external
funding to grow or expand. Apart from the funding support, qualified
startup companies will be provided with entrepreneurship education
and training, co-working space, networking opportunities with
seasoned entrepreneurs and industry experts, and external outreach
and public exposure, etc.

HKMU Foundation

The University enjoys a robust history of private support from its
alumni and friends. The fundraising results of over three decades,
combined with an understanding of the fund raising environment,
provide the basis for the current fundraising operation, staffing
model, and strategic direction. To further strengthen our fundraising
capabilities and engage our alumni, friends and supporters in a
sustainable way, the HKMU Foundation was established. The
Foundation supports the University's educational and research
activities via the identification and solicitation of philanthropic
support and effective oversight of the management and stewardship
of fundraising activities.
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Income and Expenditure

Consolidated income for the year increased by 0.3% to HK$1,705.3
million (2021/22: HK$1,700.7 million). Tuition income grew by 0.2% to
HK$1,626.2 million (2021/22: HK$1,623.6 million) primarily because
the increase in tuition income of postgraduate programmes was
roughly offset by the decrease in tuition income of distance-learning
programmes. The strong revenue streams strengthened the financial
footing of the University which enabled us to keep investing in people
and our strategic priorities.

Total consolidated operating expenses raised by 12.8% to HK$1,342.5
million (2021/22: HK$1,190.2 million). The majority of these expenses
were personnel costs, which comprised 63.2% of the total operating
expenses. Overall personnel costs increased by 11.2% to HK$848.9
million (2021/22: HK$763.2 million) as a result of salary revision and
increased headcount to support the growth in teaching and research
activities, partly offset by higher than average levels of position
vacancies. The difficulty in hiring people was a common problem
across the industry this past year. To enhance our competitiveness in
the employment market, the University engaged a consultant to
review and revise the pay package for the full-time staff.

Non-personnel expenses were impacted by the resumption of travel,
and the resurgence of on-campus and other activities, as well as
inflationary effects on expense categories such as utilities and capital
expenses. Premise-related expenses were HK$206.4 million (2021/22:
HK$174.1 million), which accounted for 15.4% of total operating
expenses, largely reflecting higher depreciation from leased assets
and fixed assets. Direct student costs and student activity expenses
were HK$125.9 million (2021/22: HK$108.6 million), representing 9.4%
of the total operating expenses.
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Investment

As of 31 August 2023, 39% (2021/22: 43%) of the University's
investments were diversified portfolios of actively managed funds,
and 61% (2021/22: 57%) were self-managed cash invested in the
deposit pool according to guidelines on diversification, exposure and
credit rating as agreed by the Finance Committee. The portfolio
investment is designed to optimise long-term returns, dampen
volatility and mitigate the risk of permanent loss of capital via
diversification and prudent financial management. High cash
allocation was a result of de-risking measures to secure stable
interest income in the global rate-hike cycle.

During the year, the University made ongoing efforts to upgrade its
investment firm roster to enhance performance relative to
benchmark results. Our efforts included building closer relationships
with partners that demonstrate superior investment judgment,
thorough processes, sound ethics, and a strong alignment of
interests with the University. In addition, the University is committed
to prioritising investments aligned with environment, social and
corporate governance (ESG) values without compromising on return
or diversification. The University invested in an ESG fund which
targets on companies with sustainable returns, strong ESG
characteristics and attractive valuations.

Investment returns were higher than forecasted, with the value of
investments recovering from a reduction in 2021/22 and showing
strong gains in the year. Consolidated interest and investment income
were a gain of HK$192.3 million in 2022/23 (2021/22: -HK$269.3
million). These results highlighted the volatility of investment returns
from one year to the next against the backdrop of high interest rate
and inflation, ongoing effects of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and
geopolitical tensions, US financial sector turmoil and government
credit rating downgrade, and China’s real estate crisis. Value of the
total consolidated cash and investment as of 31 August 2023 was
HK$5,254.1 million (2021/22: HK$4,618.7 million).
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Donations and Government Grants

The remarkable generosity of the University's alumni and friends -
including individuals, corporations, and foundations - provides essential
funding for student financial aid, investments in research, and every
aspect of the University's operations. In aggregate, a total of
HK$124.9 million in donations and grants was recorded for the year
(2021/22: HK$121.9 million), with HK$32.2 million reflected as current
year grants and donations in support of operations, and an additional
HK$92.7 million recorded as deferred income for funding the University's
long-term investment in physical infrastructure and providing
resources for core activities for future generations. We are immensely
grateful to the University’s past and present donors for their
generosity in providing the resources that enable the University’'s
mission and its aspirational pursuit of excellence. The University will
continue its fundraising endeavor in order to secure a stable source of
income for its long-term development.

Results of the Year

Throughout the year, the University navigated complex markets to
deliver continued positive financial performance. The University ended
the year with a consolidated operating surplus of HK$321.1 million
(2021/22: HK$483.1million), which is amongst the best in the
University's history. Consolidated interest and investment income
were a gain of HK$192.3 million (2021/22: -HK$269.3 million), driven
by strong performance in the financial markets. Robust operating and
investment performance contributed to growth in net assets of
HK$513.4 million, ending the year at a record of HK$5,107.6 million
(2021/22: HK$4,594.2 million). Consolidated net operating cash flow
was a strong HK$649.3 million (2021/22: HK$868.8 million), paving the
way to meet the investment commitments and new investment
opportunities.

These results show another strong financial performance and position
us well for the years to come. We owe our success to the dedication,
commitment and support of the members of the University. I am
indebted to each and every one who works for this University, who
attends this University, and who supports this University for helping
to make it such an extraordinary and wonderful institution.
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Way Forward

The University will celebrate its 35th Anniversary in 2024. This will be
a good opportunity for the University to showcase its achievements,
enhance its brand and image, and inspire actions to support its
educational and research mission. The University will hold a year-long
series of celebratory activities, and invite students, staff, alumni and
local community to celebrate with us.

While the most significant impacts of COVID-19 appear to be over, the
world continues to face many challenges, including high interest
rates, sustained cost inflation, increasing risk of recession, the war in
Ukraine and other conflicts around the globe. Notwithstanding
these uncertainties, the University has a solid financial position and is
well placed to meet these challenges, to weather uncertainties, and to
be financially enabled to drive forward our strategic priorities. We will
look into opportunities to further enhance our quality of teaching,
expand our teaching facilities, and create a more conducive learning
environment for our students in order to equip them with the
necessary skills to make valuable contributions to society.

Arnold CHENG Ka-kui
Treasurer of Hong Kong Metropolitan University
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To the Council of Hong Kong Metropolitan University

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (the “University”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 14 to 88, comprise:

= the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st August 2023;

= the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

= the consolidated statement of changes in fund balances for the year
then ended;

= the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

= the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
August 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Treasurer’s Report
and Performance Indicators, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of The Council and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and Hong Kong Metropolitan
University Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing financial reporting
process of the Group.

11
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 15 of Hong Kong Metropolitan
University Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 7th December, 2023
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FaEERRR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FRBEE
REME
EREENE
B EE
EREEE
BBRBLEER
BRSNS ERMRE

mENEE
REBMER

FE W AR TR~ EL At FE W AR TR
BREREE

BBRBEER
BREERRBATER
SHNEEMEE

TEEMEE
BEEMINERRE
A e [a] 43 78

REFEER=EA
ZIRTEN

RERREEFEY

ik AR
ARZEKE

FE IR FESt B R A

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Student loan receivables
Financial investments at amortised cost

CURRENT ASSETS
Stock of course materials
Accounts receivable, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits
Student loan receivables

Designated financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Financial investments at amortised cost
Income tax recoverable

Bank deposits with original maturities
over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fee income receipt in advance

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
provisions

REW 2 Deferred income
B EMERERBE D Current portion of gratuities provision
HEaERSBS Current portion of lease liabilities
ISR Income tax payable

mENE EFE NET CURRENT ASSETS

HEER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
mEEE CURRENT LIABILITIES

JEREN AR NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
B M SR Gratuities provision
BREIEREMN Government loans, secured
HEEaR Lease liabilities
RIEEAES Deferred capital fund
REREER Deferred tax liability

BEELE TOTAL NET ASSETS

2022-2023 F#5#R* Financial Report

MIEE
Note

21
11
13

12
11

14
14
13

15
15

16

17
18
19

19
20
21
22
23

HKZZ2-=%/\R=+—H
A TEE

AS AT 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BRZEZ= KRZEZZ
INB=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
126,693 130,228
1,928,896 1,913,848
103,508 118,364
64,883 58,518
- 16,909
2,223,980 2,237,867
2,726 2,650
152,685 143,361
11,311 6,185
2,042,882 1,948,438
1,741 1,251
21,445 3,840
156 -
2,017,776 590,776
1,170,228 2,057,533
5,420,950 4,754,034
793,646 615,794
271,260 278,293
232,699 225,653
18,330 32,300
23,481 18,746
- 131
1,339,416 1,170,917
4,081,534 3,583,117
6,305,514 5,820,984
32,449 16,502
464,005 453,700
82,499 97,581
608,977 649,472
9,961 9,546
1,197,891 1,226,801
5,107,623 4,594,183




HEEERAR
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HisE
Note
HEW® REPRESENTED BY
ES B G FUNDS AND RESERVES 5

BRI =F/\B=+—H
LB

AS AT 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BRIEZ=H i Qut=Jabad
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
5,107,623 4,594,183

RESN_S_=F+_AtAKELGEaMBERS
Approved by the Council on 7th December 2023

BREEE MEFR RS
Mr Arnold CHENG Ka-kui Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing

GilES B&

Treasurer President

HERAE
Mr Raymond CHIU Chi-wai

BAFS4EEE
Director of Finance

15



AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EBEY

2EWE
SEW
LG
MR

wEEE

EERX

BHRX
SRIZHM
B A
BERBEME
BB M
—MRFIx

THEX
HHWE MK
—MRE%
EER

HEERX

ZERR

RN LU A U]

Hith;58)
A
i

RN LU A U]

HithiZBRER

FHAF B R ig B M
HHBERNZRER

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

OPERATING INCOME
Tuition fee income

Consultancy fee income

Miscellaneous income
Total operating income

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Academic expenditure
Course materials
Tutors’ costs
Direct student costs
Staff costs
General expenses

Administrative expenditure

Staff costs
General expenses
Depreciation charge

Total operating expenditure

OPERATING RESULT

OTHER ACTIVITIES FUNDED BY
DONATIONS AND GRANTS

Income
Expenditure

RESULT OF OTHER ACTIVITIES
FUNDED BY DONATIONS AND

GRANTS

NET RESULT BEFORE INTEREST
AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND

FINANCE COST

16 2022-2023 B3R Financial Report

F5E
Note

25

25

26
26

BEZZ=F)\B=+—HLFE

LABTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BE—T-=% HE_Z_—

NB=+—H J\B=+—H
IEEERE IEEFEE

Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $’000
1,626,168 1,623,561
15,741 31,043
63,386 46,052
1,705,295 1,700,656
(21,969) (16,734)
(41,979) (42,790)
(68,377) (63,645)
(503,009) (445,588)
(18,195) (11,161)
(653,529) (579,918)
(295,352) (268,484)
(285,433) (255,929)
(108,213) (85,901)
(688,998) (610,314)
(1,342,527) (1,190,232)
362,768 510,424
162,777 125,020
(193,234) (136,932)
(30,457) (11,912)
332,311 498,512




AN R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BB RARE W/ (548)

MBER

PRIR AR AR
PSR <

FRRER

Hithz S 5H

IEHNRERRZRR

EEREH

FRGEWEETE

pagiH

EREE
—RRER G

Net interest and investment income/(loss)

Finance cost

SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items that may be reclassified to

profit or loss

Currency translation differences

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR

ALLOCATED TO:
Specific funds

General and exchange reserves

g
Note

33
21

34

BEZZ=F)\B=+—HLFE

UARTEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BHE_E_=F HE-_ZT-—
NB=+—H J\B=+—H
IESEE IEEFEE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $’000
192,330 (269,287)
(2,067) (852)
522,574 228,373
(3,567) (8,276)
519,007 220,097
(5,567) (6,252)
513,440 213,845
(7,518) (41,836)
520,958 255,681
513,440 213,845
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FEERERETR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

K%
NBE—Bz#&H Balance as at 1st September 2021
FR(EE)/ BER (Deficit)/surplus for the year
Hthér 5 E518: Other comprehensive loss:
THEBIMREMBRE Exchange difference arising from translation of
FrELZERELR aforeign subsidiary’s financial statements
Total comprehensive (loss)/income
ZE(EB18)/ Wm4a%E for the year
B2 EMEER Reallocation of funds
KZE_Z&
NB=+—Hz4&8% Balance as at 31st August 2022
NIBZZH
NB—Bz#&H Balance as at 1st September 2022
FA(ER)/ B (Deficit)/surplus for the year
Htnér 5 E518: Other comprehensive loss:
RSN REMBERER Exchange difference arising from translation of
FRE4ZEREL a foreign subsidiary’ s financial statements
Total comprehensive (loss)/income
RERE (B518) /4K for the year
EﬁZE%ﬁ%EE Reallocation of funds
KZEZ=
NB=+—Bz&# Balance as at 31st August 2023

B Rf#EE 2 SEFIIRMEESe

Details of movements in funds and reserves are set out in note 5.

2022-2023 Rk Financial Report

BEZZE=F)\B=+—HLFE

LABTHER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

—ReR
ERHE
HRES General and
Specific exchange 4age
funds reserves Total
$’000 $°000 $°000
325,966 4,054,372 4,380,338
(41,836) 261,933 220,097
- (6,252) (6,252)
- (6,252) (6,252)
(41,836) 255,681 213,845
17,395 (17,395) -
301,525 4,292,658 4,594,183
301,525 4,292,658 4,594,183
(7,518) 526,525 519,007
_ (5,567) (5,567)
5 (5,567) (5,567)
(7,518) 520,958 513,440
8,041 (8,041) -
302,048 4,805,575 5,107,623




:ﬁF EE%?EtHLEi%E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

REEBEHZRERE
EBEEREEZRS
BBIMIR

EREHELZFRE

REREEHZHAERE
BUHE
B E RS
ENESEENREER
ERERBIETERR M
ATEECNEEE S
MEENES
REBRBETRR M
ATEENEEE S
MEENES
REREIHRBEHEZ
R AN SR E
BAYE AR NERE

HEMR B RRE
Fﬁ’?ﬁh’)\

BRTEEZER

SEEEZER

REMABEB=1EA
ZIRITERZ LB

REFHDAZEFRE

REMEEZHZRERE
HEMR
-REHS
-FMEED
MEZBHRAZFRE

RERREEBENNFEY

KhBR—BZRERRE
FEMER

ERNENER

KNB=+—HZRER
REFEMER

{hEz
Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 371
Overseas tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Investment income received
Fund management and custody fees paid

Funds placed in designated financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Funds withdrawn from designated
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from matured and disposed
financial investments at amortised cost
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Sale proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Student loans granted to students
Student loans repaid by students

Increase in bank deposits with original
maturities over three months

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Lease payments

- Principal elements

- Interest elements 21
Net cash used in financing activities 37.2

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1st September

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31st August 15

BEZZ=F)\B=+—HLFE

UATEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST AUGUST 2023
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BE_ES_=F BE—_T-—
NB=+—H J\B=+—H
\ESFRE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
652,777 875,600
(3,439) (6,788)
649,338 868,812
81,086 9,697
85,567 66,673
(5,185) (6,006)
(952,563) (60,738)
872,174 62
35 84,470
(152,173) (110,858)
43 30
(13,658) (15,476)
2,086 1,619
(1,427,000) (201,359)
(1,509,588) (231,886)
(19,707) (11,070)
(2,067) (852)
(21,774) (11,922)
(882,024) 625,004
2,057,533 1,438,416
(5,281) (5,887)
1,170,228 2,057,533
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SMBHRRMEE

B TESE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

1.6
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1.

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

1.6

General information

Hong Kong Metropolitan University, “the University”, was
established as a body corporate on 25th May 1989 under The
Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong Ordinance 1989 for the
provision of opportunities for higher education in Hong Kong by
means of open learning and thereby to advance learning and
knowledge, and to enhance economic and social development in
Hong Kong.

Under the Memorandum of Administration Arrangements which
provides the framework for the operational relationship between
the Government and the University, the Government met the
setting up and capital costs of the University by giving a grant in
each financial year up to 1992/1993. Starting from 1993/1994,
the University became self-financing.

Upon the third review of the Institute by Hong Kong Council for
Academic Accreditation (“HKCAA") in June 1995 and the successful
transfer of accrediting role from HKCAA, the Government
confirmed the Institute’s self-accrediting status to validate its
own degree programmes in October 1996.

On 30th May 1997, the Institute was upgraded to a university
following The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong
(Amendment) Ordinance 1997 passed by the Legislative Council
on 21st May 1997. The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong
Ordinance 1989 and The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong
(Amendment) Ordinance 1997 had been repealed and
superseded by The Open University of Hong Kong Ordinance.

On 1st September 2021, The Open University of Hong Kong
(Amendment) Bill 2021 was passed by the Legislative Council. The
Open University of Hong Kong Ordinance had been amended as
Hong Kong Metropolitan University Ordinance. Pursuant to the
Ordinance, the name of the University was changed from “The
Open University of Hong Kong” to “Hong Kong Metropolitan
University” with effect from 1st September 2021.

The principal activities of the University’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. The University
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The address of its registered office is 30 Good Shepherd Street,
Homantin, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of HK dollars ($'000), unless otherwise stated.
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Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2,

2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the financial years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
and interpretations (collectively HKFRS) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of designated financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1st
September 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

Annual improvements Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2018 - 2020 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of

Filfilling a Contract

AG 5 (revised) Merger Accounting for Common

Control Combinations

21
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2.1
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2.1

WAt

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Apart from the above, no other amendments that are mandatory
for the financial year commencing on 1st September 2022 are
relevant and applicable to the Group.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st September 2023 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these are
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out below:

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting 1st January 2023
and HKFRS Practice Policy
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting 1st January 2023
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to 1st January 2023
Assets and Liabilties arising
from a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar 1st January 2023
Two Model Rules
HKFRS 17 and its Insurance Contracts 1st January 2023
Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 1st January 2023
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1st January 2023
Current or Non-Current
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with 1st January 2024
Covenants
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and 1st January 2024

Leaseback
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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2. FEHFEEREE (R)

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 mHIBZE (4§) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
KT5IEH Effective for
U2 accounting periods
BHEELENR beginning on or after
ERREESR A5 ERERANTIER —EBE HK Int 5 (2020) Classification by the Borrower of 1st January 2024
(2020) —fERAHE —HA—H a Term Loan that Contains a
SERERE Repayment on Demand
BIEMRZEHR Clause
BRZN%E
EEGHERETR  HEEMEREE 2 —ZCOF Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1st January 2024
REBMBRS —H—H and HKFRS 7
HRBTIRAYERT
BEANBREEN REERHBE HE Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined
FIOEREAD NIAHEED HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
R 55285509 HHESEA Associate or Joint Venture
1&5T BE

2.2

FEBRBRERNERMBERERMHU
EREANEEBITZZAREZEB-AEH
RIEFFAE L LR ER BT 2 £ R KR
ENzEzE-

FE
2.2.1 SEMEHR

FRAEFEEHEAGEGENFRE
FTER(EEEETEER) E-EEARR2
HZTRMAETZOBNARIER
LR EDR TEENEBEHZE
BS B HE 77 72 1th 5 [0 3R By > 2 5= B B 22 )
ZER - FREAENEERELEERZ
HESGHAR -FAREEHERILZH
BFLEEH AR

BEADBFAKEEBEXRBSHBOA
RAZ-WBFRIERENNELERE
ENAFE-SRNERERERFTHR
D FTERNBECENRBELH
FEENERNEENERNAFE X
BHABBHADHNEERKENER
HYgRBENERKBANATEAR
PERNKEELE AEETEAABEN
BRFEHEERORBEERFEENL
Bl stERKBE S B IFER -

BEHEBNEEEER<HE

2.2

The Group will apply the new standard, amendments to standards
and interpretations in the year of initial application. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the adoption of the new
standard, amendments to standards and interpretations and is not
yet in a position to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

23



24

n‘l'.F

SMBHRRMEE

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

2.2

FESHHEHRE (8)
FRF (48)
2.2.1 HGEMBHRR(E)
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2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through surplus or deficit.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 9 either in surplus or deficit or as a change to other
comprehensive income/(loss). Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the University on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required
upon receiving dividends from the investment if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related transaction
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the investment properties over their estimated
useful lives of 50 years. Where the carrying amount of an
investment property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in surplus or deficit during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at the cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes
development and construction expenditure and other direct
costs attributable to the development less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated accordingly,
upon completion and/or receipt of the occupation permit issued
by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR")
Government, where applicable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

BWRAVBHEN R THEEH Leasehold land classified ~ Remaining lease period
OpSEN=funb:il as finance lease
EEY “+ER+FHEE Buildings 20 - 50 years or lease period,
HA UBAE & (R whichever is shorter
AR A EEFANHEEH Renovation costs 5 years or period of tenancy
e e E e agreement whichever is shorter
REKER =ERF Furniture, fixtures 3-5years
B and equipment
=k HEF Motor vehicles 5years
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2.5

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets - computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and any directly attributable cost of
preparing the asset for its intended use. The intangible assets are
initially recognised at costs less impairment losses and are
amortised upon completion of the user-acceptance test.
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2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets - computer software (continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product include costs of employee benefits and
professional fees arising directly from bringing the asset to its
working condition.

Computer software recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of three years.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial investments and other financial
assets either those to be measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss, or those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial investments and other financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are managed in accordance with
internal documented risk management guidelines or
investment strategy provided by the Group’s key
management personnel. Assets in this category are stated at
fair value and classified as current assets.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

2.6.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.

2.6.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the University, its subsidiaries or the counterparty.

Stock of course materials

Stock of course materials are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses or value in use, wherever appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
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2.10

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Receivables

Receivables include tuition fee receivables, student loan
receivables and other receivables incurred under the ordinary
course of business. If collection of receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

The Group measures the expected credit losses using a lifetime
expected loss allowance for tuition fee receivables and student
loan receivables. For other receivables, the Group measures the
expected credit losses using 12 months expected loss
allowance. The expected loss rates are based on the historical
observed default rates adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Impairment losses on receivables are recognised within
operating result. Receivables are written off (either partially or
in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting year whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable and student loan receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on financial assets measured at amortised cost
other than accounts receivable and student loan receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost other than accounts receivable and student
loan receivables has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or the
receivables are not settled in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the agreements, management considers these
receivables as underperforming or non-performing and
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

When management considers that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, the financial assets measured at
amortised cost will be written off.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer or student, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
or student and assumes performance obligations to transfer
goods or provide services to the customer or student. The
contract is a liability and recognised as fee income receipt in
advance if the measure of the remaining performance
obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights. The
Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or student within contract assets if the Group
expects to recover those costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. No provision will be made for future anticipated
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Payables

Accounts payables are obligations to pay for goods and services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business.
Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans from the HKSAR Government

Loans are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the loans using the effective interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Loans from the HKSAR Government (continued)

Loans are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Leases

A contract s, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset if the customer has both the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from using the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

As a lessee, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset (including
within property, plant and equipment as “leasehold land and
buildings” in the consolidated balance sheet) and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date, except for leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less which are recognised as expenses on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(a) Right-of-use assets

At inception, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at
the amount of the lease liability, initial direct costs and the
obligation to restore the asset, less any incentive granted
by the lessor. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
lease term of the underlying asset. The right-of-use asset is
subject to impairment review whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.



bR IR M

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FETHEREE (A)
2.16 S (&)
(b) HEERE

HESRVNSEASHERRKA
ERXNRESE BFEABEAG
BERETEAEERIAITERE
RIEERZERNIEEMREH - RXE
HERXHEBHEERS AR
BoMAMERRABRZHEE ARAK
HARBEREEMMBEAEETMEX
THERERM K -AEEEER
FEEMEAEEURKEERRE
B E (RBERAEZXR) REB R
DEREEURBRFAENEERXE
Tt B -MEENEHARAREER
XEEY - EHANZTEEHEE
EEEMAE AEEMFERE
BR(LHEMEREEEFHLE
FEREE) -

2.17 EEARIRIEFRISH

FARERAXXBEERRELERE 1R
AR R R PHERD EEKEM
FEWGERNEEEMERITEIL
BRT RBETREMG S U RER

(a) ZHAFRTEMI

EHFMERAXDREEEERL
ENEERIRMBANERRER
HEMBEMHER LB EMIRIZES
H-EEEEHTEMNERREX
REFEBNBEROREPRRAR
I TMEEE RN T RBEHS
XA FREBBOREREE R
Bee

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.16 Leases (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
future lease payments with reference to an expected lease
term, which includes optional lease periods when the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend
or not to terminate the lease. Future lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
this cannot be readily determined, an incremental
borrowing rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing its carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest rate method) and by reducing its carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made. The lease liability is
remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment made to the
related right-of-use asset) when there is a change in future
lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an
index or rate or in case of reassessment of options.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(a) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. FESHHERHEE (8) 2.
2.18 UqEsFEs? 2.18

BERENRHE/RERMRBEANUER
ESCARHESD

MEWNDERERLE B ARHA
BE-REXESF NIRERBRESR

FERE B I A TR (AR5 R M50 o

) S e & AR FRA SR B ) LE AR RR -
KEHENHESWARBERRNER
ESCARHESD

AR B 7 WK B AR B RO REF e G R RS0 0

MIEWAZES B AETIRER

UTHEETENEEZEKEIOZE

EBRWA D

BHE_Z_=%
JNB=+—BHLEE
$°000

BIUBEREBE

BHIUES
EE—AFE 79,127
E—EREFREA 1,626,168
1,705,295
HithsRuk 162,777
1,868,072
BE_E_—

NB=1+—BIFE
$°000

BB NREE

BHIULES:

EE—B5E 77,095
E—ERBSRE A 1,623,561
1,700,656
HithZe R 125,020
1,825,676

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income recognition

Student fee income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the courses/programmes to which it relates.

Miscellaneous fees consist of application fee, advance standing
claim fee, graduation fee, etc.; and are recognised when services
are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Miscellaneous income is recognised on an accruals basis.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by timing of
satisfaction of performance obligations:

Year ended
31st August 2023
$’000

Revenue from contracts with

customers and students

At a pointin time 79,127
Over time 1,626,168
1,705,295
Revenue from other sources 162,777
1,868,072
Year ended
31st August 2022
$’000

Revenue from contracts with

customers and students

Ata pointin time 77,095
Over time 1,623,561
1,700,656
Revenue from other sources 125,020
1,825,676
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2.19

2.20

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Capital fund, deferred capital fund and other specific funds

The capital fund is set up to reflect funds of the Group allocated
for the purchase or construction of property, plant and
equipment. They are released to match with depreciation of
related assets over their useful lives or upon disposal of
property, plant and equipment.

The deferred capital fund is set up to reflect grants and
donations earmarked for the purchase or construction of
property, plant and equipment. The fund will be recognised as
income to match with the depreciation charge of the related
assets over their useful lives or upon disposal of property, plant
and equipment.

Other specific funds are set up to support the Group's activities
such as course development, student loan scheme, research
projects, scholarships and bursaries to students, building
maintenance, IT development, etc. They are released when the
related expenses are incurred.

Donations and benefactions

General donations and benefactions are recognised as income
when right to receive has been established.

Specific donations and benefactions received or receivable
(other than for purchase or construction of property, plant and
equipment which are dealt with as deferred capital fund in note
2.19 above) are initially recorded as deferred income and
recognised as income over the periods to match with the
related expenditure.

Matching grants are recognised as income when grants have
been received or are receivable from the Government.

Other government grant or sponsorship (other than for
purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment
which are dealt with as deferred capital fund in note 2.19
above), together with the interest income arising therefrom, is
recorded as deferred income, when there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching with it and that the grant or the sponsorship will be
received. They are recognised as income over the period to
match with the costs they are intended to compensate.



n‘l'.F j- ﬁ #Eﬁ I}fj -‘-I Expressed in Hong K:ﬁfﬁfﬁ;i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FEGHHEME (8) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Mg 2.21 Foreign currency translation

(a) NEEE K BRI EE (a) Functional and presentation currency
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Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the University's functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities, such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are recognised in surplus or deficit as part of
the fair value gain or loss.

(c) Group entities

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate of the balance sheet
date;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated statement
of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii

=

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income/(loss).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for unutilised annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement scheme obligations

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Hong Kong are expensed as
incurred.

The Group contributes to an employee retirement scheme
established by municipal government in respect of a
subsidiary in the PRC. The municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of this subsidiary.
Contributions to this scheme are expensed as incurred.
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2.23

2.24

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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3. MEBEARRESEREE 3.
3.1 MBEARER
(a) SMERKE
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Financial risk and capital risk management
3.1 Financialrisk factors

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities mainly in connection with investment in
securities, certain of which the currencies are not the Group
entities’ functional currencies.

The majority of them are denominated in US dollars (“USD").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to reasonable possible changes in the
foreign currency exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, on the Group's surplus/deficit after income

Bt RS 25 1% o tax. 1% is the sensitivity rate that represents management’s
assessment of the reasonable possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

Shs SMSEEE B | (TFRK) BEnRR | BRZEE

Foreign Currency Increase/(decrease) in exchange rate Effect on surplus/deficit for the year

% $°000
J\B=+—H

31st August 2023

E 1 17,293

ush (1) (17,293)

k- et -

JNB=+—H

31st August 2022

X7 1 16,435

usb (1) (16,435)
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3. HMBERKEDTEEEE (F) 3.  Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)
3.1 HMBEABEE (48) 3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)

(b) B+ A (b) Price risk
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The Group is exposed to equity and debt securities price
risk because investments held by the Group are classified as
designated financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest all
funds managed by the Group in a manner which will satisfy
liquidity requirements, safeqguard financial assets and
manage risks while optimising return on investments.

Investment and fund management is governed by
investment policies and risk management guidelines
approved by the Council. Investment restrictions and
guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Specific
restrictions and guidelines are set for each fund in
accordance with its investment objectives. In addition,
specific limits are set for each fund to control risks (e.g.
permissible asset type, asset allocation, liquidity, credit,
counterparty concentration, maturity, foreign exchange
and interest rate risks) of the investments.

The Group has a Finance Committee which monitors the
risk and performance of its investments while external fund
managers have also been appointed to manage the
investment funds. The external fund managers are stable
and financially strong financial institutions.
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3. MEBERRATEREEE (R)
3.1 MBERER (H)
(b) & AR (4)
TRETREKGEHD BHH
EHENEAEHEATFEAR

BO0.7T4%FE1.12% (ZTE - %F:
0.78%F1.15%) ISR E > AT 1R

3. Financialrisk and capital risk management (continued)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)

(b)

Price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to range
from 0.74% to 1.12% (2022: 0.78% to 1.15%) increase/decrease
in the fair values of the equity and debt securities with all
other variables held constant, based on their carrying
amounts at the balance sheet date.

EHMARARE-
HEARR/
BHRZEE
Effect on surplus/
deficit for the year
$°000
—gZ=
JNB=+—H
31st August 2023
BEEMESFNERZERLLE Increase in prices of equity and debt securities with
FAH0T4% E1.12% applicable rates ranging from 0.74% to 1.12% 15,379
BEEMESNERZERLEE Decrease in prices of equity and debt securities with
TE0.74% F 1.12% applicable rates ranging from 0.74% to 1.12% (15,379)
kSt 3
NB=+—H
31st August 2022
HENESNERIREREEX Increase in prices of equity and debt securities with
FF0.78% ZF 1.15 % applicable rates ranging from 0.78% to 1.15% 16,625
HENESNERIRERILX Decrease in prices of equity and debt securities with
T 0.78% ZF 1.15 % applicable rates ranging from 0.78% to 1.15% (16,625)
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3. HMBERKREDTEEEE (F) 3.  Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)
3.1 HMBEABEE (8) 3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)

(c) EERMK (c) Credit risk
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The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its deposits
with banks and investment managers, financial assets at
amortised cost, student loan receivables and accounts and
other receivables.

At the balance sheet date, there was no concentration of
credit risk. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of cash deposits with
banks, financial assets at amortised cost, student loan
receivables and accounts and other receivables.

The Group has policies in place for the control and
monitoring its credit risk. Fee income primarily has to be
received in advance before service is rendered. Deposits are
placed with banks and investment managers which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. Follow-up action is
taken in case of overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of receivables
individually to identify any irrecoverable amounts to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for them.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to
meet liabilities and/or financial commitments as they fall
due, and it results from the amount and maturity mismatch
of assets and liabilities.

The Group has prudent liquidity risk management policy in
place by maintaining sufficient cash and short-term bank
deposits and keeping investments sufficiently liquid to
meet the operating needs. The Group employs projected
cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working
capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and
known funding requirements could be met.
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3. BEBEARRETEERER (48)
3.1 HERAKEE (&) 3.1

w

(d) RBETER (&)

TREERIBASNERNER
BRE - EREREEANGHRE

WA E:

—E-=

JNB=+—H 31st August 2023
BEERRER Government loans, secured
HEaE Lease liabilities
P& 5 BR TR % Accounts payables and

et EH accrued expenses
ZEICZE

NB=+—H 31st August 2022
BREIEHER  Government loans, secured
HE&RE Lease liabilities
FE(TRRFR K Accounts payables and

FEst & accrued expenses
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Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the balance sheet date,
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

based on the contractual

—&FR —FERF HFR 48zt
Within 1 year 1to5years After 5 years Total
$’000 $°000 $’000 $°000
= 246,800 280,000 526,800

25,294 62,744 23,814 111,852
237,493 - = 237,493
262,787 309,544 303,814 876,145
- 175,100 351,700 526,800

20,791 103,253 = 124,044
242,001 - = 242,001
262,792 278,353 351,700 892,845
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3. WMEEBREATEKRERE (H)
3.1 MBEARER (H)
() RERBRAFEMEAR
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3. Financialrisk and capital risk management (continued)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)
(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no interest-bearing financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing
financial assets, mainly the cash and cash equivalents and
debt securities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to reasonable possible changes in the
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the
Group's surplus/deficit after income tax.

HENER/
FIEEFH | (FE) iRz E
RTEFR-EHFRE - RERFEZEY UFREERT) Increase/(decrease) Effect on surplus/
Bank dep05|ts, investment in bonds and cash and cash equivalents in interest rate deficit for the year
in different currencies % $’000
“EZ=F
INB=+—H
31st August 2023
BT 1 25,253
HKD (1) (25,253)
FEETT 1 2,489
Non-HKD (1) (2,489)
Wt 1 27,742
Total (1) (27,742)
“E-F
INB=+—H
31st August 2022
AT 1 19,914
HKD (1) (19,914)
FEBTT 1 2,860
Non-HKD (1) (2,860)
Rt 1 22,774
Total (1) (22,774)
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REAREERGBEANT=

s HREERNRBREERTSHNERE
(REEHE)(F—E)°
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MEBENITRENEMEA IRE
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(FZfE)°
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Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide sufficient funding to support the existing operations and
to maintain a strong capital base for future development of its
business.

The Group’'s management actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure an optimal capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditure and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

= Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

3. HBRBERETEMEIE () 3. Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)

3.3  2F{E(kE (8)

TREXAEER

—E-_=ZFE)N\B=+
—HBERZEZZF/NB=+—HUA

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

TEEAENEEREGR:
INB=+—H As at 31st August 2023
BE Assets
BBEERRMEATEME Designated financial assets at fair
BHNEMEE value through profit or loss
FELEHERE Unlisted investments
- BlEEEE - Unit trusts
-BEKREES - Fixed income funds
- RERIEEZER - Deposits at financial institutions
- &S -Bonds
EH&E Listed investments
TEsmEE Derivative financial instruments
-SNEEHASH - Foreign exchange forward contracts
HEEE Total assets
INB=+—H As at 31st August 2022
BE Assets
BBBEERRMATEM[ Designated financial assets at fair
BUHNEMEE value through profit or loss
FELEHEE Unlisted investments
- BlfEtESE - Unit trusts
-BEKREEE - Fixed income funds
- REREIBZER - Deposits at financial institutions
- &% -Bonds
A& Listed investments
TEEHEE Derivative financial instruments
-SNEEHES - Foreign exchange forward contracts
BEEE Total assets

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31st August 2023 and 2022:

B—B B R BB 4t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
965,891 - 965,891
1,028,432 - 1,028,432
13,590 - 13,590
34,475 = 34,475
494 - 494

. 1,741 - 1,741
2,042,882 1,741 - 2,044,623
859,145 - 859,145
955,467 - 955,467
57,373 - 57,373
76,045 - 76,045
408 - 408

- 1,251 - 1,251
1,948,438 1,251 - 1,949,689
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MBERRETRRERE (F)
LFEE (F)

AEBTLEENERIANQAE
ERBEERBERENTHERES K-
EREUHNRMNEMRRESFIZM R
PR K- FAAL - EEBRFERE
EREBES MKFHREARBAFR
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ZhiERERERE- AEEFENER
BEENTSBREAERESRE-ILE
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TERERTSEEZEMIT A (MNE
BXBZMETR)ZARBEUME
FEE-REFHELIRERBEEMRS
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SETAQRTEMRAERBARENS
BEmS LETAQEEE _B-
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Financial risk and capital risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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EEDHE KRR

FERERBATEREEMERF
MEERNBRTHREREANGER
HAE > R ERST (A PR FEY A5t R Rk~

FEBHRRFHEERBR -T2
GEtEFER LROVSGNERERME
e U THEETHAEERRATESR
TEMBEEHEEMESRNREE
AFERABNGSHES RRR-

(a) ME -HBRREBARNMEEREN
&5

BANEERERINENGEEARR
B HAERATEERYNINERE
B REBRERNBAZRMNRRE
ARHEMEMHEE it K2R RE
M IR R ITEREE M A

(b) FEWBR BB (G5 :

5 B AR 5 18 W AR SRR PT U [ B8R 2 5T
Mt RERRRBAEER BB
EREHEERRBEEL BRI
A REE AW OB EE R AE
EH-ERRBRRRERTEE
B E R G5t ETRI R E 4 45t
TR MEMEESETERUER
MEAREE EWARRBBEG K
ZIAMGF BN FEE#-

(c) ME-BERRFE ERAEEE BT
BERKREMEZ (AR ERER:

FEEEEE2EHELI M AR
PR BT B B s EMERR
TR M AR BN A EES
BEERLEFEEMERRREE
MmZz EstHR - EEREEYE-
BELRB EREEE - BTLEE
NgEWEZ G AIERFERHA
ERFRALRGFERR EEE
RHESTIE MBI E A WS KM £
BRENERENHEZIFRBEE
8 B AR o B R A R S R RT RE R B
st IR E R - E MR AT RE S
EINEFHUBRRREEZINE/#
HAXHE-

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Separation of prepayment of lease premium from property,
plant and equipment:

The valuation of prepayment of lease premium has been
performed by an external valuer by valuing the depreciated
replacement cost of the buildings and then deducting the
depreciated replacement cost of the buildings from the
initial consideration paid for the leasehold land and the
building in the People’s Republic of China.

Estimated impairment of receivables:

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
Provisions are applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of receivables
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will have impact on the carrying value of receivables
and impairment of receivables is recognised in the year in
which such estimates have been changed.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and investment properties:

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives for the Group's property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and investment
properties with reference to the estimated lease period of the
leasehold land, expected technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in the
market and that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. Management will revise
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives
are different to previously estimated, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation / amortisation
expense in future years.
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5. E£B{EHMES Funds and reserves

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

FREH
Movements for the year
wEEMFLRE
EASIRRFRESE
ZERES
Exchange
difference
arising from
B=8=Z ®ils EEnEEEZ translation i - 3
hA—H IRA Rz H BN of a foreign INB=+—H
bk Income/ Reallocation subsidiary’s ZH5ER
As at expenditure of funds financial As at
1st September 2022 recognition  and reserves statements  31st August 2023
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000
HHRES Specific Funds
General Development
—RREEREE Reserve 100,000 (8,041) 8,041 - 100,000
BLERES Student Loan Fund 154,404 2,676 - - 157,080
Donations and
ShFIEBN Benefactions 31,580 (1,147) - - 30,433
Building Related
BRIBERE Facilities Sinking
B2RESE Fund 13,374 - - - 13,374
EXEE Capital Fund 1,692 (1,006) - - 686
Statutory Reserve
FEMEEE N Fund /A 475 - - - 475
301,525 (7,518) 8,041 - 302,048
— el General Reserve 4,291,256 526,525 (8,041) - 4,809,740
EREiR Surplus for the year 519,007
ER Exchange Reserve 1,402 - - (5,567) (4,165)
4,594,183 519,007 - (5,567) 5,107,623
A RBAREGRS RYNBREREZHNENED ZTEAZE#EES - BEEE#BESEIEMREINESI 2R TR
BErRELEBEBRAEE#ERES

Under the PRC regulations, MU-Shenzhen is required to transfer 10% of its net profit to the Statutory Reserve Fund.
Appropriation to the Statutory Reserve Fund may cease when the balance of such reserve fund has reached 50%

of the registered share capital.

—F+ZA=+—8;

BHE_E

ANBANZEREESTEZZEMRENBDZA+ AL 3

tE',/xﬁﬁIé,%é‘é"%‘ MR EERRRIHERE S

FANEBABH-_TT_F

As at 31st December 2001, the balance of Statutory Reserve Fund has attained 50% of its registered share capital.
As a result, there was no appropriation transferred to this reserve fund account from Recurrent Account since 2002.

2022-2023 B47E#R %S Financial Report
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5.

B BE#fES (48) Funds and reserves (continued)

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

FREH
Movements for the year
mEBNFLE
IBBRAEE
ZERES
Exchange
difference
arising from
St Jat s EEREEEZ translation AZEC
hB—H AR i BH SR of a foreign NR=+-—-H
Z4E8R Income/  Reallocation subsidiary’s ZERR
As at expenditure of funds financial As at
1st September 2021 recognition and reserves statements  31st August 2022
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $°000
HHRES Specific Funds
General Development
—REEEE Reserve 102,017 (19,412) 17,395 - 100,000
BEERESE Student Loan Fund 170,878 (16,474) = - 154,404
Donations and
ShNSRI8BN Benefactions 36,524 (4,944) - - 31,580
Building Related
BEIEERE Facilities Sinking
REEE Fund 13,374 - - - 13,374
BEXEE Capital Fund 2,698 (1,006) - - 1,692
Statutory Reserve
EEFERES A Fund A 475 - . _ 475
325,966 (41,836) 17,395 - 301,525
—RRfEE General Reserve 4,046,718 261,933 (17,395) - 4,291,256
EREER Surplus for the year 220,097
ERHE Exchange Reserve 7,654 - - (6,252) 1,402
4,380,338 220,097 - (6,252) 4,594,183
A RBAREBGRG RYNBREREZHNENED ZTEAZE#EES - BEEE#BESEIEMREINESIZ2H TR
EBRFLEBRAZER#ERES

Under the PRC regulations, MU-Shenzhen is required to transfer 10% of its net profit to the Statutory Reserve Fund.
Appropriation to the Statutory Reserve Fund may cease when the balance of such reserve fund has reached 50%
of the registered share capital.

BE_ZT—F+-A=+—H ' FBANZERFEESCEZZMRENED ZE+ Rt
tE',/xﬁﬁI—f,%é‘é’%“EEEﬁE%?%mAIEEUEt{E%%gﬁo

As at 31st December 2001, the balance of Statutory Reserve Fund has attained 50% of its registered share capital.

FANEBABH-_TT_F

As a result, there was no appropriation transferred to this reserve fund account from Recurrent Account since 2002.
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6. EYE Investment properties

B=s== QS 3
NB=+—H NB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
5% Cost
REN 2 4555 At beginning of the financial year 167,681 168,249
EREE Exchange adjustment (478) (568)
HERZ 4R At end of the financial year 167,203 167,681
RN Accumulated depreciation
REZ 48 At beginning of the financial year 37,453 34,440
FRITEER Depreciation for the year 3,506 3,533
SRR Exchange adjustment (449) (520)
RERZ MR At end of the financial year 40,510 37,453
Net book value at end of the
HERZREFE financial year 126,693 130,228
KRIZEZ=ZF/)\B=+—8B ' FINBARFENREYEN LA FEEAB/\+TEtELTT (ZTEZZ2F tENE+=
BAFR) ETEEERR—BBEIEENGEAR — kAT TEBERMERAE U AHTBEEFAEEMETH

B-HAMNIMERENFBERER-SE_=F/\R=+—HZ2

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

NP EFTIM 210

The fair value of the investment properties in PRC of MU-Shenzhen at 31st August 2023 was $6,877,000 (2022:
$7,439,000), representing the valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, on an open market value basis. Details and the fair value as at 31st August 2023 of the corresponding land
use right are disclosed in note 21.

RIEZ_=F/\B=1+—H AREREENKREVENQAFEEAZR=ZTFT/\EET (CTE__F: ZEATET) It
HEEERH—HBIEENEEAR —kFITTEERERAR l,( AT EEEAREMETHE

The fair value of the investment properties of the University in Hong Kong at 31st August 2023 was $238,000,000
(2022: $260,000,000) representing the valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers, on an open market value basis.

RIE_=F/\B=+—H REREFENKREVENREFEA—RBR-FAB-+tEOFT (ZT=Z
FhEmN+mENFx) ERFREEEFNTHREBRNNREER (MisE20)e

As at 31st August 2023, the investment properties of the University in Hong Kong of the net book value of
$126,274,000 (2022: $129,444,000) has been pledged to secure the interest-free loan from the HKSAR Government
(Note 20).

—EZ
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7.

122 KM% Property, plant and equipment

HELH FERE
RiEzEY Rkt
Leasehold e #EEI®Z  Furniture, B
landand Renovation Construction fixtures and Motor L
buildings costs in progress  equipment vehicles Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
53 Cost
S
hE—B2&H At 1st September 2022 2,302,342 272,427 18,100 332,029 1,916 2,926,314
=1 Additions - 81,924 23,766 46,093 390 152,173
Transfer from Construction
EEERTE in progress - 8,275 (13,055) 4,780
HE /s Disposal/write-off - (1,512) - (6,676) - (8,188)
ERRE Exchange adjustment (42) ; - (109) i (151)
KZEI=F
JNB=+—HZ
“EBR At 31st August 2023 2,302,300 361,114 28,811 376,117 2,306 3,070,648
RitinE Accumulated depreciation
i "2
NB—BZ#E At 1st September 2022 562,339 204,471 - 245,090 1,066 1,012,966
EER (M) Depreciation (Note a) 65,528 28,764 - 42,461 331 137,084
HE /s Disposal/write-off - (1,505) - (6,668) - (8,173)
ER A Exchange adjustment (34) - - (91) - (125)
KIBZ=%
NB=+—HZ
FrgiEs At 31st August 2023 627,833 231,730 - 280,792 1,397 1,141,752
KZE_=%
JNB=+—HZ Net book value at
BREEE 31st August 2023 1,674,467 129,384 28,811 95,325 909 1,928,896
iz Note:

(a) FRITEEM AL
Depreciation for the year was charged against:

$'000
TERZ Administrative expenditure 80,722
HM)EE  Other activities 56,362
137,084

BERYR - RERRBRENATHHEL M NERERY NERAEEESRUNNEESPOTHN\E+ B2 EHEY
By (TEEHRRL)NEEL S HR S =F/\A=+—HZEKREFENA=E/\T—8/\+/\Bx(K
—ECCFNEEREATEET)

Right-of-use asset included within property, plant and equipment as “leasehold land and buildings” includes the
leasehold land of Kwai Hing Learning Centre at 8th to 11th floor of Kowloon Commerce Centre II (“Kwai Hing Learning
Centre”). As at 31st August 2023, the net book value was estimated to be $381,880,000 (2022: $405,670,000).

RIEBZZF/N\AZ+—B ZEHEFONREFEALRTEONE=+tEtE T ERFRASEFINITHRERAN
REER-

As at 31st August 2023, Kwai Hing Learning Centre amounting to the net book value of $504,370,000 has been
pledged to secure the interest-free loan from the HKSAR Government.
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1433 M sa s (48) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

%
KZE_—-F

NE—B %8R
E

BEEEIR

HE /s

EREE

QS
JNB=+—HZ
Fegeed

RitinE
KB —F
hB—Bz#e
&R (Mista)
HE /HsH
ERAE
K2
J\B=+—HzZ
Feeed
S
JNB=+—Hz
IREEE

iz Note:

Cost

At 1st September 2021
Additions

Transfer from Construction
in progress

Disposal/write-off
Exchange adjustment

At 31st August 2022
Accumulated depreciation
At 1st September 2021
Depreciation (Note a)

Disposal/write-off
Exchange adjustment

At 31st August 2022

Net book value at
31st August 2022

(a) FRITEEM AL
Depreciation for the year was charged against:

THRX
HAthiE)

KR-E-__®£/)\B=+—8"

REER

Administrative expenditure

Other activities

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

gt HE-RE
B2 bk ]
Leasehold RiEmE #BIE  Furniture, Hif
landand Renovation  Construction fixtures and Motor e
buildings costs in progress  equipment vehicles Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $7000
2,279,860 222,877 6,191 317,311 1,595 2,827,834
22,532 48,465 14,728 24,812 321 110,858
1,183 (2,819) 1,636
(98) (11,600) (11,698)
(50) (130) (180)
2,302,342 272,427 18,100 332,029 1,916 2,926,814
496,414 184,279 219,792 799 901,284
65,964 20,290 36,983 267 123,504
(98) (11,580) (11,678)
(39) (105) (144)
562,339 204,471 245,090 1,066 1,012,966
1,740,003 67,956 18,100 86,939 850 1,913,848
$'000
68,662
54842
123,504
ZRHBHONKREFEALE—TTtEZONED ERAEREAENITHRERFN

As at 31st August 2022, Kwai Hing Learning Centre amounting to the net book value of $517,040,000 has been
pledged to secure the interest-free loan from the HKSAR Government.
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8.

$EA;EE Intangible assets

financial year and as at end of the financial year

% Cost

REHTEE Accumulated depreciation

HENRER Net book value as at beginning of the
ZEREFE

BREEEAREANERE

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BZEZ= BRZEZZ
JNA=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
18,705 18,705
(18,705) (18,705)

BERBZBARTMEETEBRRERBBZEREM A

The intangible assets represent the cost of human resources management system acquired and direct attributable costs

incurred.

F25] Subsidiaries

K-8-=% Qe
NB=+—-H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
HFRBEZEE Investment in subsidiaries
JEEMRES —#AA{E  Unlisted shares, at cost 59,000 9,000
REBFABZFHBEMT:
Details of the University's subsidiaries are as follows:
AT REFATEH
PAGIE Place of incorporation TBER FRisaRHE
Name and operation Principal activities Interest held
ERMERE (PE)BRAE)(REEHK) &4 EREE 100%
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (China) Hong Kong Investment holding (BB direct holding)
Limited (MU-China)
AR (RN BFRAR (R K) HEE \RHAME TRULRERIARTS 100%
HKMU Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited The People’s Republic Provision of consultancy (FI#E#EBindirect holding)
(MU-Shenzhen) of China services
BAYBERRETOERAR (#HAYIEEEPL) & YRR EHO 100%
(RIK—B-—F<B-+AhA) Hong Kong Physiotherapy Centre (Ef#EE direct holding)

HKMU Physiotherapy Centre Limited
(HKMUPCQ)

(Incorporated on 29th June 2022)
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LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

9. F27] (%) Subsidiaries (continued)
REREBFRTEN
NE%E Place of incorporation TEEK FRi%ARIE
Name and operation Principal activities Interest held
BARIARBERNERERAR &E TR 7T R RE R AR 100%
(BPAHRZE B R R RER) Hong Kong Provision of research and (Efz#EAdirect holding)
(RuFi—E=——%/)\BAA) consultancy services
HKMU Research Development and
Consultancy Limited (HKMU-RDC)
(Incorporated on 9th August 2022)
BAMEARRREERAT HE AERERE 100%
(BEEBEASREE) Hong Kong Alumni Association (Ef#EAdirect holding)
(RIK-Z_"FHhA—H)
Hong Kong Metropolitan University Alumni
Association Limited (HKMUAA)
(Incorporated on 1st September 2022)
10. £RtTHE 5% Financial instruments by category
A= it
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
=REE Financial assets
BEBETRRATE Financial assets at fair value
BN EREE through profit or loss
BREERRRA - Designated financial assets at
TEECHNREES fair value through profit or loss
RYEE (MiEE14) (Note 14) 2,044,623 1,949,689
2,044,623 1,949,689
HEERANERE E Financial assets at amortised cost
- RIBHA A SRS E - Financial investments at
(MIEEL3) amortised cost (Note 13) 21,445 20,749
- BB A S (MizE11) - Student loan receivables (Note 11) 76,194 64,703
- FEU AR TR EL A FE UL AR TR - Accounts receivable, other
Kig (MizE12) receivables and deposits (Note 12) 104,913 83,973
FEIfFEHEB=@EA 2R - Bank deposits with original
1?7_ ARRERIAEE maturities over three months and
B4 (MisE15) cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) 3,188,004 2,648,309
3,390,556 2,817,734
5,435,179 4,767,423
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10. £RtTE45%E (48) Financial instruments by category (continued)

K-E-=% Qe ———-
JNB=+—H J\B=+—8
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
®=REE Financial liabilities
AN EMSRE®E  Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
- PR AESER - Accounts payable and accrued
(Mi5E17) expenses (Note 17) 237,493 242,001
- BFEIEHEER - Government loans, secured
(t5£20) (Note 20) 464,005 453,700
- HEAE (WE21) - Lease liabilities (Note 21) 105,980 116,327
807,478 812,028
11. FEUERSEF Student loan receivables
Qi . ——
JB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’ 000 $°000
FEWESEER Student loan receivables 76,194 64,716
B OREEEERE Less: Provision for impairment ; (13)
WERZ A FIEREZ Balance as at end of the financial year,
BAEEREE maximum exposure to credit risk 76,194 64,703
HER: Represented by:
—FANEBEZEEE Repayable within one year 11,311 6,185
—FREEZEEE Repayable after one year 64,883 58,518
76,194 64,703

RUBLEERATEEAHKREEETMEAMREERGEELUBEE.

The fair values of student loan receivables approximate their carrying values for both financial years and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.
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11.

FEURER 4 E5k (48) Student loan receivables (continued)

REER ERBRETRAEZRKBEERZRE SN T:

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

The ageing analysis for the student loan receivables that are past due but not impaired as at the balance sheet date is as

follows:
St i Qe —
NBA=+—H NB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
B Past due by:
BH—FR Within 1 year 6 17
B —EZ"FR More than 1 year and up to 2 years 8
BH_FE=FR More than 2 years and up to 3 years -
EHA=FU E More than 3 years 6 13

FEERBERMB RS ENBIRAFER B A ERAEEGER HEMERKBLEERRBEHREE

BiBEEE-

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all student loan receivables.

RIEZ=FE/\B=1+—8B EBKRBLEEFFERE (ZEZZF: —B=Fx)°
At 31st August 2023, there were no student loan receivables impaired (2022: $13,000).

RRSELEERREGEEENEZHUT:

Movements on the provision for impairment of student loan receivables are as follows:

A= BIZEZZ
J\B=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’ 000 $ 000
RE 24 Balance as at beginning of the financial year 13 43
RERSIB RS BiETE A Provision for impairment, included in
EBRZHE expenses under other activities 81 13

FERMBRMATUREIZFRIE  Written off during the year as uncollectible (94) (43)
RERZHEER Balance as at end of the financial year - 13

EEIZARABRBEERFAEAERRFERR

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for the student loan receivables.
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12.

FEMS RS - L {th FEUSARR TR RRIA R 8 &

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits

BT
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

Ko®== i
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $’000
FEUARTR Accounts receivable 2,868 1,480
HAhRESARTR Other receivables 59,147 57,632
& Deposits 42,898 24,861
FrEiEZ RAEE R Maximum exposure to credit risk 104,913 83,973
FEIFRIR Prepayments 47,772 59,388
152,685 143,361

FEWER R MR AN REREEN ATEEEREEEMEMBREENEES U EELUBEE.

The fair values of accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits approximate their carrying values for both

financial years and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

FEEEAEEMBREENEIRAFERZELA EZHERBEEG R ENRURIRAZHRREEHEER

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected loss

allowance for accounts receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

FEMSRARTR - EL{th FEUSAR R - FA(IRRIA R 8 % ()

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits (continued)

FEFZHAMBURERNEERBEERR -AEEREBMFRELENBINRBHCEEHERI BEMAHEME
WEERREERB+TZERZRRAEEHEER G

The Group's other receivables and deposits are considered to have low credit risk. Under HKFRS 9's expected credit loss model,
the Group measures expected credit losses which use a 12-month expected loss allowance for all other receivables and deposits.

RIZZ=ZF/\B=+—H0 > FHRBRAREMEWRRREBIEL R AE ZFRUEIRRIRB RGO BHERLCHE
WBILEENBE ZERBIRRZRE 20T
At 31st August 2023, the following accounts receivable and other receivables were past due but not impaired. These relate to

a number of independent customers and students for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
receivables is as follows:

=R = KZTEZZ

J\B=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000

E@HA: Past due by:
mER D —ERE=ER Less than 1 month and up to 3 months 2,449 3,632
BH=EAZENER More than 3 months and up to 6 months 1,477 7
BHREmENEA More than 6 months 27 514
3,953 4,153

HER A YRR HMEURF AN RERREL T ESEREEE -SRI RSEEMIERRIERER.
The other classes within accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits do not contain impaired assets. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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13. HEHBSEM AR ERIIZE Financial investments at amortised cost

14,

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

B=F== BKZEZZ
INB=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
NEES Corporate bonds 21,445 20,749
—FERE|HA%E Current portion 21,445 3,840
JE—FEAEFIHREE Non-current portion - 16,909
21,445 20,749
KRIZEZ=F/\B=+—H REHERAINERTENRKREEAZTEBN+OERERT (T2 28 . ZFEt+ M@

B AT T) » 3 3% 8 5 B 2 40 R (B 5 18 1) B o 4% 388 85 AR A5 B 2 R 3 B 3 SR 2 B Sl ORI o

At 31st August 2023, the carrying value of financial investments at amortised cost was $21,445,000 (2022: $20,749,000) and
stated at the amortised cost less impairment loss. The financial investments at amortised cost are not past due or impaired.

BRRERRBATEESCNREEMEERTESHMEE

Designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments

K== BZEZZ
JN\B=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’ 000
JEEHIRE RATE Unlisted investments, at fair value
BHEFRES Unit trusts 965,891 859,145
B WmEE Fixed income funds 1,028,432 955,467
&% Bonds 34,475 76,045
HERIEEZ F0 Deposits at financial institutions 13,590 57,373
TEERMEE Derivative financial instruments
SMNEBHAEHY Foreign exchange forward contracts 1,741 1,251
THRE HATE Listed equity securities, at fair value 494 408
FhAEEZBEREERRE Maximum exposure to credit risk 2,044,623 1,949,689

EENATEERRBETERETSNEREMEE
The fair value of all securities is based on their current bid prices in an active market.

BRETRRBRATEEELCORESREEZA

VPEEZEH MERRERATFAGERIERA

Changes in fair value of designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, interest and investment income are

recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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MBS
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

14, BBRGREBATFEEZCHOREEHEERTESHEE (H)
Designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
(continued)
BERDRRRATEEECNREEREERTESRNEEUATIEESHE:
The designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are denominated in the
following currencies:
S it 2 S —— S
INR=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
=7 United States dollars 1,631,219 1,530,238
BT Hong Kong dollars 335,508 393,453
Hihgi Other currencies 77,896 25,998
2,044,623 1,949,689
15. [REIMAREA=ER ZRTERRAERAEEFEY

Bank deposits with original maturities over three months and cash and cash equivalents

Ko®=-= ;S
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
RITERRFERE Cash at banks and in hand 482,601 464,371
THRSRITIERN Short-term bank deposits 687,627 1,593,162
BENIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,170,228 2,057,533

ZIHARBB=EA Bank deposits with original maturities

ZIRITER over three months 2,017,776 590,776
3,188,004 2,648,309
FrEEz RAXEERR Maximum exposure to credit risk 3,187,671 2,647,936

REMBABEB=EAZRTEARRENREEEYHNREEETELE B E.

The carrying values of bank deposits with original maturities over three months and cash and cash equivalents are mainly

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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16. TFEWEIEULE Fee income receipt in advance

WHETTHEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

FEWE RN E Fee income receipt in advance

== - ——
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
793,646 615,794

TRV HEFECRIDAFVNRARZEREFENRAEZE-

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in the current reporting year relates to fee receipt in advance

at the beginning of the year.

S it 2 e
INB=+—H NB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
BEETFEVRREE Revenue recognised that was included in
B BRERRIEREST fee receipt in advance at the beginning
R AEER of the financial year 615,794 592,283

TREIFEFERIARA —FHIU LN ENPRTEREBNETNEEE:
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts with an original expected duration

of one year or more:

FHEHI IS —F s Expected to be recognised within one year

B-F=Z= BRI
NB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
793,646 615,794
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17. FE(TRRFRFET B A RIEME Accounts payable, accrued expenses and provisions

HKIEZ=F - —
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
FE{TRRTR Accounts payable 100,528 121,369
ezt &R Accrued expenses 136,965 120,632
By =Nl Financial liabilities 237,493 242,001
M Provisions 33,767 36,292
271,260 278,293

FEMERF A ERARBENATERHRAETMEAMBEENGEES T EELBEE.

The fair values of accounts payable, accrued expenses and provisions approximate their carrying values for both financial
years and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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18. IEIENNEE Deferred income

RoE—F

HhA—BZ4EER

FEREHK

FEUSFRERN

BERIEEAR

BE&#

EEMEHPERZ

—

7\5/_

3

]

EHEMESPERZ

ﬁ/_

et

=——

R ——

INB=+—RZ#ek

—ECCHF
hB—HBzZ#&8
REWR
FEURTREBA
BIRIEE A
Ho#

+%8
—ET=F

NB=+—RZ%

&R

LAt

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

HEREHER
HFER #BhERER Matched HithigBh
Government Grant and donations- Other 4aga
loan, secured sponsorship Specific donation Total
$’000 $’000 $°000 $°000 $’000
Balance as at
1st September 2021 62,787 25,946 116,980 30,276 235,989
Amounts received and
receivable during the year” = 42,283 26,801 25,137 94,221
Transferred to deferred
capital fund# - (88) (32,906) (15,590)  (48,584)
Amounts utilised for
other activities 10,313 (31,553) (21,958) (12,775) (55,973)
Balance as at
31st August 2022 73,100 36,588 88,917 27,048 225,653
Balance as at
1st September 2022 73,100 36,588 88,917 27,048 225,653
Amounts received and
receivable during the year? = 74,071 14,971 32,855 121,897
Transferred to deferred
capital fund# - (405) (3,535) (2,265) (6,205)
Amounts utilised for
other activities (10,305) (61,427) (21,150) (15,764)  (108,646)
Balance as at
31st August 2023 62,795 48,827 79,203 41,874 232,699

N EREEER RS E A S ER R R RSN SRR ERERFEERRI 2t TAEBE T (T2 2F :—FAR

t+N\BZF ) UKRRKRIL

FHRERRENISTEAMIBEBEHROLZ/\BE+EE—Fx (ZEZZF:R"E—+EBtTmw)-

This includes the donation received and receivable from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust to finance the construction
of the HKMU Jockey Club Institute of Healthcare of $794,000 (2022: $15,782,000), and fund the STEAM Centre with an open
resources environment of $8,571,000 (2022: $6,177,000).

# ZRARBERNRENE RBILREREEREELES
This represents the transfer to deferred capital fund for the purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment.
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19. ¥i% SN E%E Gratuities provision

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

K=®Z= S
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $’000
FREANZHEER Balance as at beginning of the
financial year 48,802 44,063
BETH Provision 51,150 42,863
FANER] Payments (49,173) (38,124)
HERZ RS Balance as at end of the financial year 50,779 48,802
HER: Represented by:
—FENENZEEE Payable within one year 18,330 32,300
—FRENZEEE Payable after one year 32,449 16,502
50,779 48,802
BESHESRESSOMEIBRRME - ABEMESREN QA FTERAREEENEAMREERERE JERBH I

HHEMTREEAUNREREEE  RNHMBEEMWEEM-

Provision was made with reference to the terms stated in employees’ contracts. The fair value of gratuities provision
approximates to its carrying amount for both financial years. No discounting to non-current portion of gratuities provision is
made as the discounting effect is insignificant.
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20. HFFEIRPER UL FEETER Government loans, secured, at fair value

ETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

B=TE== BRIEZZ
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
HEIRREmR. Government loans, secured,
URTEBETER at fair value 464,005 453,700
BRANERNEESTNT:
The government’s loans are repayable as follows:
k- it
J\B=+—H NB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $7000
TEE_EA In the second year 30,612 29,872
EFE=FEFREN In the third to fifth years 162,817 122,625
BREUE After the fifth year 270,576 301,203
464,005 453,700
HREREEAFIITHERRUAERERAN AFEEE RS - BEREREZEAIINERIEEHGARER
EEREEESR) ﬁ'ﬁ?%ﬁi\ﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬁ(u%maHE)’th,(%ﬁ,li%&%iqﬂlu{’E%?E&ﬁ(MﬁI?) ZER 2 KRE—RLZEE

S+ETIHE

The government loans are interest-free loans from the HKSAR Government to the Group for the development of the Campus
Phase II, Jockey Club Campus project and the construction of the HKMU Jockey Club Institute of Healthcare and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. They are secured by Kwai Hing Learning Centre (Note 7), and are repayable in equal annual
installments over a period of ten years after the final draw-down of the loan.

RIZE-N/ZER-E-—/ 2R FBRITHERNARFESRHBSEENTE ARERBEMBER
#%‘J'FT’“%:EET’“CE#\E’JE?IHF?J MTIRB-RUERBIEEBEEREHTE

In financial period 2019/20 and 2021/22, in view of the development of COVID-19 epidemic, the HKSAR Government has
granted a one-off interest-free deferral of loan repayment for a period of four years in total to alleviate the financial pressure
to repay the outstanding loans under the Start-up Loan Scheme.
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Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

tR e M35 IR R M oL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. 7HE Leases

SEEANBFEIZAHAE EARBEER HEFHNENER ETPEESERRGR KA -SHEAEY
BEERIKLHENEZE MABSRTHERAMFEREBEATE- RS =ZF/\B=T—H HAMBRKRESE
HEEAZENEERRBEEREA—E—TFT—BATETe

The Group has leased buildings mainly for office premises, warehouses and student hostels. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. Extension and termination options are included in
a number of leases, the majority of which are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessors. At 31st August
2023, the future cash outflows for lease not yet commenced but committed by the Group amounted to $111.9 million.

(a) EFAEERRERBERHRIEA

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

(i) fER#EEE Right-of-use assets

T ithfERRE
(PFfsE(1))
fety) Land use rights HagE
Buildings (Note (1)) Total
$’000 $’000 $’000
RIZEZT—%F Net book value at
HA—BHEREFE 1st September 2021 7,603 5,035 12,638
10 Additions 119,714 119,714
FRITE Depreciation for the year (13,507) (199) (13,706)
BE R TR Exchange adjustment - (282) (282)
TECC Net book value
J\B=+—BMEREFE at 31st August 2022 113,810 4,554 118,364
HEEK: Represented by:
BN Cost 146,221 5,259 151,480
REHNE Accumulated depreciation (32,411) (705) (33,116)
113,810 4,554 118,364
R-E_—_ Net book value at
AB—BHEREEE 1st September 2022 113,810 4,554 118,364
0 Additions 9,360 9,360
FERITE Depreciation for the year (23,802) (183) (23,985)
EREE Exchange adjustment - (231) (231)
. —— Net book value
J\B=+—HBMRmEFE at 31st August 2023 99,368 4,140 103,508
HER: Represented by:
%N Cost 155,581 5,029 160,610
REHNE Accumulated depreciation (56,213) (889) (57,102)
99,368 4,140 103,508
FizENote :

(1) KZEZ=F/\A=+—8>

disclosed in note 6.
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FNMARAURPEN L MERAENATFTEEA-TAE/N\ T B (ZEZ2F . =F28E
CEn)EREE - THEtER(CE T FE . ZTHEEATNAEB ) REMEZ I MER#ENR "S- =F/\A=+—H
HNAFEEE KIGEERH —HABIEENGEEAS-KFTTEERERAGS U AHMMmIZEEEAEEMETHE.

The fair value of land use right in the PRC of MU-Shenzhen at 31st August 2023 was $29,820,000 (2022: $32,020,000), representing the
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers, on an open market value basis. Out of
$29,820,000 (2022: $32,020,000), $24,200,000 (2022: $25,990,000) represents the fair value of the land portion of the investment
properties as at 31st August 2023.

HERt Tt FNREYEREYNFEREN 2 _=F/\B=+—HZ AT EFFIKKE6-
Details and the fair value as at 31st August 2023 of the building portion of the investment properties erected on this piece of land are
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21. FHE (#) Leases (continued)

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

(a) B EEABRETHNIIE (4) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (continued)

(ii) FAE&E Lease liabilities

HEEEMNSHNIBHBEROT:
Contractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows:

et
1-26 2-54 B
1%  Between Between Total FRER(E
Within land2 2and5  contractual Carrying
1year years years cash flows amount
$’000 $°000 $°000 $000 $’000
BNIBZ=%F
J\B=+—RA At 31st August 2023 25,294 30,992 55,566 111,852 105,980
WIERBEERS  Less: Non-current portion (82,499)
mENERSY Current portion 23,481
=
J\B=+—H At 31st August 2022 20,791 31,685 71,568 124,044 116,327
WoIERENERS  Less: Non-current portion (97,581)
mEnER Current portion 18,746
(b) AR B W RFEFBIFIE Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
FEWRX RV ZAEEARBELT:
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:
HE-FT-= e —
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
ILEEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
{EREEEZITEEMA  Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 23,985 13,706
I ER Finance costs 2,067 852
KEHEER Operating lease expenses 1,242 552
ERAE Exchange adjustment
(BEE—REXZA) (included in General Expenses) 231 282

BE_Z_=F/\A=+—HULEEEHEZREMEBEA T —B/\+ET(ZE2F . —F—BA+ET)
Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st August 2023 was $21.8 million (2022: $11.9 million).
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22, BIEEAEZE Deferred capital fund

23,

WABTTEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

K-¥== S =
JNB=+—H J\B=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
TRER 2 48R Balance as at beginning of the financial year 649,472 646,174
Eira Wl _RIER Released to consolidated statement of
AU comprehensive income* (46,700) (45,286)
REEARMZ H# Payments for capital expenditure# 6,205 48,584
RERZ MG Balance as at end of the financial year 608,977 649,472
RIS =M BEREEONTAREEtTER (TEIZTE OMFHEEZFH/\EARTR)INE

In financial year 2023, this includes $46,700,000 (2022: $45,286,000) depreciation.

FRPEAENEENREYE BB LNRERREERFERANAB_+EERTT (=
MOFJT)e°

T _FOF/N\BRETNE

This represents the transfer from deferred income of $6,205,000 (2022: $48,584,000) for the purchase or construction

of property, plant and equipment.

IEIEHIEE & Deferred tax liability

K-®== S
INB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
IREMIEEE Deferred tax liability
(BiB+—ER &) (To be recovered after more than 12 months) 9,961 9,546

BERBEEBEERFRRARDRZREBBRGFMELE - FRNEHWT:

The deferred tax liability arises from the undistributed retained earnings of a subsidiary and its movement during the

financial year is as follows:

K-%¥== S
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
REZ 5 Balance as at beginning of the financial year 9,546 8,088
Charged to consolidated statement of
EiR AW RN comprehensive income 415 1,458
RERZ R Balance as at end of the financial year 9,961 9,546
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24. {ERR4 Employment expenditure
24.1. BEBESRZEAMREMT:
Employment expenditure analysis by nature is as follows:
#E—S-= H#E—Z-—
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
ILEEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
e -TERER Salaries, wages and allowances 839,791 763,780
RBIKEHEIPZEEME  Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes 27,295 27,175
SN RE Provision for gratuities 51,029 42,729
918,115 833,684
24.2. E#ABZ % Remuneration of higher paid staff
BHABZHFMOBEK U THRER: e S
Their remuneration fell within the following bands: BE-S-= E“_i—j——
NB=+—H NB=+—H
ILEEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
A UN ¢
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
HK$1,800,001 - HK$1,950,000 4 6
HK$1,950,001 - HK$2,100,000 11 7
HK$2,100,001 - HK$2,250,000 5 10
HK$2,250,001 - HK$2,400,000 4 1
HK$2,400,001 - HK$2,550,000 1 2
HK$2,550,001 - HK$2,700,000 3 1
HK$2,700,001 - HK$2,850,000 1 2
HK$2,850,001 - HK$3,000,000 - 2
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,150,000 2 1
HK$3,150,001 - HK$3,300,000 2 1
HK$3,300,001 - HK$3,450,000 1 1
HK$3,450,001 - HK$3,600,000 1
HK$3,750,001 - HK$3,900,000 - 1
HK$3,900,001 - HK$4,050,000 1
HK$4,650,001 - HK$4,800,000 1 1
HK$6,000,001 - HK$6,150,000 - 1
HK$6,600,001 - HK$6,750,000 1
38 37

FMeEFE BEMRAKFEFEZER - RERMNME-

Remuneration includes salaries, employer’s contributions to retirement schemes, cash allowances and gratuity payments.
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25. —RRFISZ General expenses

#E—ZT-= HE—T_—
JNB=+—H JNB=+—H
fl:3:4 bR
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
kX Academic expenditure
HEHX Academic expenses 13,618 8,177
= TN Temporary staff costs 4,577 2,984
18,195 11,161
1TEIRZ Administrative expenditure
BFEE Building management 67,837 63,767
KETHEER Operating lease expenses 1,242 552
EREFE S A A Temporary staff costs 3,965 3,362
WAERX Office expenses 37,413 31,808
KB ERE Utilities 30,354 24,419
EEHE Publicity 16,425 20,547
BT 7 2att Stores and equipment 3,203 3,273
BAERSR2ER Student admission, graduation and
SEEER activities expenses 57,519 44,912
BEEEHENRER Library books and materials 25,979 24,060
FRENREXANEER Legal and professional fees 6,973 3,501
IBEEHER Project expenses 23,616 15,786
1BIEE R Recruitment expenses 2,190 1,845
H&Ers Other operating expenses 8,717 18,097
285,433 255,929

72 2022-2023 BA#53R%: Financial Report



V'F j. i% #E ﬁ I‘tll -‘-I Expressed in Hong K;ﬁszflﬁi
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. IBRRHERIEEEIRYEMES) Other activities funded by donations and grants

HE—ES—-= S —
JNB=+—H J\B=+—H
fl:3:4 bR
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
KA Income
BRER Donation released from

-IREEAREE - Deferred capital fund 46,700 45,286
- IREW R - Deferred income 108,646 55,973
SNFRIERR Donations and benefactions 1,527 934
BT S Matching grant 5,877 22,817

HEME IR E Gain on disposal of property,
Iz ER plant and equipment 27 10
162,777 125,020

Bz Expenditure

TEER Depreciation charge (56,362) (54,842)
FEREEBMIER Course development and projects (93,963) (64,196)
1ERNE S HERT Scholarships and bursaries (23,014) (23,526)
Hith Others (19,895) 5,632
(193,234) (136,932)

RN LR ALl Results of other activities funded by
Hith;FEHRIA donations and grants (30,457) (11,912)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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27. BB & RECEBF Matching grants and matched donations

AMBRBEGEYEREZCENEN URZBHEESRABPERREYE EEFINTHERRR -2 =F
NARUERHEMEHE - H_TT/N\F-A—HE RBEXAMATBRNITHREBRMANEH HBE58-

The HKSAR Government established Matching Grant Scheme in June 2003 to help enhance the fundraising capacities of the
UGC-funded institutions and develop a stronger philanthropic culture in the community towards investment in education. Since
1st January 2008, the University has been included in the beneficiary list of the HKSAR Government's Matching Grant Scheme.

ARERENA TR -FEABRECHENHHES B PNERBEIC BE 2 REHEHEREAMIHNT:
Details of the University’s matched donations, matching grants awarded and the related expenditure of 4th, 5th, 6th and 7th
Matching Grant Scheme are as follows:

—RefcEt YD
b EEA
BB & Matched Matched
Matching donations donations
grants - General - Specific
$’000 $’000 $’000
MR _—FhB—RZ4EER Balance as at 1st September 2021 119,601 4,110 91,573
Wz Income

FBRIEEEIE Interest and investment loss (135) (607) (1,337)
(135) (607) (1,337)

& Expenditure
BARMIEE Capital projects - - (33,075)
1B H HRIE Scholarships and prizes (200) - (2,282)
Bh&s Bursaries - - (278)
BirEE Academic development (724) (22) (1,692)
Hith Others (18) - (629)
(942) (22) (37,956)
F=Z=——#/)\B=+—HB2%8 Balance as at 31st August 2022 118,524 3,481 52,280
KRIEZZFHAB—HZ&EER Balance as at 1st September 2022 118,524 3,481 52,280

Wz Income

FEREE W Interest and investment income 4,577 69 2,108
4577 69 2,108

553 Expenditure
EARMIEE Capital projects - - (1,963)
REBS IR Scholarships and prizes (1,021) - (481)
BhEE Bursaries - - (251)
BT R Academic development (776) - (1,951)
Hith Others - - (87)
(1,797) - (4,733)
HZEZ=%/\B=+—BzZ#8 Balance as at 31st August 2023 121,304 3,550 49,655
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28. HLIBEptiekikEs B H M & RECHIER

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

Matching grants and matched donations for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for

Post-secondary Students

ANEHBRAENRKG EL2ERMBEREEHIRHHME R EMEREFHBIIIKRE-

ERIMERR FIEE

BRSNS RERBRNX LS EEXEZF2EER THRALESERNER R SMmbe a2z k=

MRX%:

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds the grant, matching grants and related donations of
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students, have to be separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note,
all expenditure funded by matching grants and related donations are recognised in the year of expenditure incurred. The
eligible donations, the corresponding matching grants and the related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

B E [ ZE=EA
Matching Matched
grants donations
$°000 $°000
KIE——FhB—HZ#&R Balance as at 1st September 2021 - 2,875
Wz Income

FERI&EEE Interest and investment loss - (356)
= (356)

(52 Expenditure
BB NIRIE Scholarships and prizes - (123)
BhEE Bursaries - (20)
= (143)
HZZZZH/\B=+—BZ4#k Balance as at 31st August 2022 - 2,376
HRZZE__FhAB—BzZ#&eR Balance as at 1st September 2022 - 2,376

Wz Income

FB R E W= Interest and investment income - 53
° 53

% Expenditure
Hit Others B} (15)
- (15)
HZZZ=%/\B=+—BZ4#k Balance as at 31st August 2023 - 2,414
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29. gigi‘;ﬁﬂ‘ /m.n'l';u& F_%_EgJ siﬂilﬁﬂ‘ /m.n'l';u
Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students and Scheme for Subsidy on

Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students

AHAHERERGG ELEEBIRARFA BN —F—RBIFLEEBINT

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

Emst Bl BB E MM AR BIIRE-

ERILMERR FFEERENEN T HE SRS HZFELHEH - THPRASEERzWERMAX:

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students and
Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students, the funding received and the payments have to
be separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note, all expenditure funded by the subsidies is recognised in the year of

expenditure incurred. The related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

et = W= Rl = -
Yezs

‘e

A S

352

IREIEFT 2 888

BRIZ2_&F/\R=+—HZ4ER

MIZEZZEhA—B 2z
gk
RSN

53
BLENE

IRIEIEFT 2 B8R

REBEZ=F/\A=+—HZ#8

2022-2023 B47E#R %S Financial Report

Balance as at 1st September 2021
Income
Subsidy received

Interest income

Expenditure

Refund of unspent funding to
HKSAR Government

Balance as at 31st August 2022

Balance as at 1st September 2022
Income

Subsidy received

Interest income

Expenditure
Subsidy to students

Refund of unspent funding to
HKSAR Government

Balance as at 31st August 2023

= L8555
ZimetE
Subsidy on
Exchange for
Post-secondary
Students

$°000

r—F—RIE L8
BIPZETR
Subsidy on
Exchange to “Belt
and Road” Regions
for Post-secondary
Students

$°000

3,543

2,813
9

2,822

(2,101)

(2,101)

4,264

4,264

2,568
87

2,655

(981)

(2,892)

(3,873)

3,046
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30. FRFEECEH##BIE 18 Research Matching Grant Scheme

LETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

ANEARHBEDZETENG MARHEM S BN MEMEMBRAFHBIIINE -FRILLHERAS
FrEEREHAEE MERRRI I AN EEHEE - T RAAEESERNER R HEERERH

ZWmE R AX:

In compliance with the requirements of University Grants Committee which funds the grant, matching grants and related
donations of Research Matching Grant Scheme, have to be separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note, all expenditure
funded by matching grants and related donations are recognised in the year of expenditure incurred. The eligible donations,
the corresponding matching grants and the related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

HRIEBEZ—HNB—BZ&EER
Yz
ETA/EHMﬁﬁiJﬁ/
=y
%IJ,%&#Qi%H&ﬁ

52
TERELE!
MgEaefE
BEZES
Hth

RZZE-__F/\R=+—HAZH%ER

K- —FhA—AZH&H
Wa

B/ HR T BN E/
MRS

R Rig&E W

53
MREE
EEt i
BERIES
Hth

RIZ2-=F/\R=+—HAZ4ER

Balance as at 1st September 2021
Income

Donations/Research Grants/
Research Contracts Received

Interest and investment income

Expenditure
Research Projects
Research Equipment
Research Activities for Students
Others

Balance as at 31st August 2022

Balance as at 1st September 2022
Income

Donations/Research Grants/
Research Contracts Received

Interest and investment income

Expenditure
Research Projects
Research Equipment
Research Activities for Students
Others

Balance as at 31st August 2023

foii#hEh & [ TEEEA
Matching Matched
grants donations
$°000 $°000
31,437 10,148
22,817 28,443
297 51
23,114 28,494
(4,083) (28,414)
(228) (1,200)

- (40)

- (300)
(4,311) (29,954)
50,240 8,688
50,240 8,688
5,877 12,415
1,770 394
7,647 12,809
(10,399) (6,756)
(1,137) (1,612)
- (40)

= (100)
(11,536) (8,508)
46,351 12,989
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31, T—-H—IELBEBIZRABEEHND
Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for
Post-secondary Students

ANEHERBREGELG —F—RBIZELBEBIIRAREEH N EYENM I AFHE KRB - FRALLWERR
FFEEREENTHYERTHZFEYEF T RAEEEMzERMAX:!

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt
and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students, the funding received and the payments have to be separately disclosed. For
the purpose of this note, all expenditure funded by the subsidies is recognised in the year of expenditure incurred. The related
income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

$°000
MZEZ—FhB—R2Z4ER Balance as at 1st September 2021 2,061
Wz Income

‘& Subsidy received 882
F Bz Interest income 3
885

% Expenditure
BEBYE Subsidy to students (62)

Refund of unspent funding to
REIKAT 2 BRER HKSAR Government (1,151)
(1,213)
MZEZ"HF/\B=+—B2Z#8 Balance as at 31st August 2022 1,733
gttt =y W= Rl = - Balance as at 1st September 2022 1,733
Wz Income

HEhE Subsidy received 1,693
B U Interest income 46
1,739

s Expenditure
B4 EHE Subsidy to students (47)

Refund of unspent funding to

REIMATZ 855 HKSAR Government (851)
(898)
BRIE-=F/\B=+—HZ48 Balance as at 31st August 2023 2,574
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32, EEBEMREKNI—F—RIBIZRRASEEHE
Non-means-tested Subsidies for Post-secondary Students to Participate in Exchange Activities
in the Mainland and Belt and Road Regions

ANEHERERGH ELE2EAMBRNL —F—RIBIRXAEAREEAENEN MBI AFHBIIRE 1F
HIMERR FFEEREYENTHYEESHZELHHENE T RASREERZBE AR

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy for
Post-secondary Students to Participate in Exchange Activities in the Mainland and Belt and Road Regions, the funding received
and the payments have to be separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note, all expenditure funded by the subsidies is
recognised in the year of expenditure incurred. The related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

r—&—i
B R4 it BRES g 8L BRI
RABEEHE GABREEHE
Non-means-tested Non-means-tested
Subsidy on Subsidy on
Mainland Exchange to “Belt
Experience Scheme and Road” Regions
for Post-secondary for Post-secondary
Students Students
$’000 $°000
KRB —FhB—HZieH Balance as at 1st September 2021 1,028 1,100
Wz Income

ek Subsidy received 198 491
B U Interest income 1 2
199 493

(52 Expenditure
BEHEhE Subsidy to students > (43)

Refund of unspent funding to
REIBATZ 8RER HKSAR Government (825) (594)
(825) (637)
HKZZ-—#/)\B=+—BZ#%k Balance as at 31st August 2022 402 956
HRZZ2__FhB—BzZ#&eR Balance as at 1st September 2022 402 956
Wz Income

=1k Subsidy received 193 923
B Interest income 7 26
200 949

% Expenditure
24L& Subsidy to students (21) (25)

Refund of unspent funding to

IR[EIEUT Z BREE HKSAR Government (204) (466)
(225) (491)
HIEZ=F/\B=+—HBZ## Balance as at 31st August 2023 377 1,414
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33. BHERIGEWEE Net interest and investment income

#E—S-= #E—T——
J\B=+—H J\B=+—H
12353 LHEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
RERITERZH BT Interest income from bank deposits 97,831 13,851
ERERRRMATEE
MEMEEZAFERF  Fair value gains/(loss) and investment
/ (E518) R Bz / income/(loss) on financial assets at fair
(B518) 7928 value through profit or loss 94,499 (283,138)
192,330 (269,287)
34. FRiS#BAZ Income tax expense
HEAREIREBREEOESKRECRERE MEBFAAENLEEEREBN (T2 . Tm) Bk k2

ERFRARHEBAGREBNEH - SRNBREGZEBFRE E&ﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬁiaﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ‘iﬁaﬁi‘%ﬁﬁ?"iﬂ(qﬂ
)2 RITMEFFA B -GS W RINGHNAAERASNT:

No Hong Kong profits tax is provided for the University and its Hong Kong subsidiaries as the University is exempted from
taxation pursuant to Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance and its Hong Kong subsidiaries are not subject to the profits
tax as they had no assessable profits for the financial year (2022: Nil). Taxation on profits generated by MU-Shenzhen has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the financial year at the rate of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which it
operates. The amount of income tax expense charged to the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive income

represents:
BE—ZT-= ®BE_ZT_—

NBA=+—H J\B=+—H
IESERE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000

EHAMRIE Current taxation
HHBFER Hong Kong profits tax - -
HE S EEFRER PRC enterprise income tax 3,152 6,818
3,152 6,818
IRIERIIE Deferred taxation 415 1,458
3,567 8,276
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34. FhiSHEASZ (&) Income tax expense (continued)

SEERBRABHRZRE RRBABAMZRETHNERSEENDNT:

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before income tax differs from the theoretical amounts that would arise using the taxation
rate of the home country of the University as follows:

B@E—T-= BE—T_—
J\NRA=+—H J\B=+—H
J12:3:; b
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
FRIR A& R Surplus before income tax 522,574 228,373
WA 2 16.5% Notional tax calculated at the rate of the
(ZEZ:16.5%) M=K home country of the University at 16.5%
FEE/LHNLERRR (2022:16.5%) 86,225 37,681
Tax effect on surplus of the University
HERIBIRFERGISE 881K which is exempted from taxation
BB R 2 KPR pursuant to Section 88 of the Inland
ZHRBRE Revenue Ordinance (84,680) (33,159)
Rz EBFREZ Expenses incurred in Hong Kong
&M subsidiaries not tax deductible 446 34
Effect of different taxation rate in the
FREEEM(TE) A PRC in which a subsidiary carries out
T\Hﬁ—?—ﬁ'ﬁ;g business operations 1,161 2,262
AFERN KRB Temporary difference on undistributed
B e retained earnings from a subsidiary 415 1,458

FRSMBEY Income tax expense 3,567 8,276




82

tR e M35 IR R M oL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. &{IFRIE Commitments

35.1 REBRA(IFHRIE Campus development commitments

ETEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

BE_T_=F/\A=1+—H SEHEEERE EERNEALERERFEEERRNMEMAREHE B NEAMLRK

HIF:

As at 31st August 2023, the Group had commitments for the development of the Jockey Club Campus, the HKMU Jockey Club

Institute of Healthcare and related facilities as follows:

BEESHERERE Contracted but not provided for

35.2 Efthi&{3shIE Other commitments

(a) REFEAZRE BRI ITEE BT E LRI R ER MR

=S S
NB=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $°000
- 2,421

SRS

» KB RRE PR 7£ BY 1 3th AT BE 4 BT Wk 3]

Under the terms in the agreement with the HKSAR Government, the leasehold land on which the University's campus is
erected may be repossessed should the University terminate as an educational institution.

(b) HZE_EFNA KBREETARBNNEEZREE]
EEKAZ=ETTe

BHMIIERBMERE (EE) M ARREMNABA I

The University entered into agreement in April 2020 with the Zhaoging Municipal Government and Zhaoqing University to
jointly establish Hong Kong Metropolitan University (Zhaoging). The University has committed to contribute $300,000,000

for the project over the agreed period.

36. EETAEMEYLTAEFIE Operating lease rental receivable

BE_Z_-F/\BZ+—H SEEFTHHENCEEE THRRRBEEASWABROT:

As at 31st August 2023, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

T —E No later than one year

Later than one year and no later than

B—FERBBRAE

five years

2022-2023 B47E#R %S Financial Report

S=EF == KZIEZZ
J\B=+—H JNB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
6,348 7,477
4,980 9,834
11,328 17,311
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37. IREFFEER Cash flow information

37.1 E¥5THERF2ZIRE Cash generated from operations

HE-—®-=

HE—2==

o — —— = R —
NA=+—H NB=+—H
IESERE LEEFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$°000 $’000
FRIR A& R Surplus before income tax 522,574 228,373
HEE: Adjustments for:
FI BRI E (%) /548 Interest and investment (income)/loss (192,330) 269,287
HEMNS Interest on lease liabilities 2,067 852
FEW R4 B FERE Provision for impairment of student loan
bS] receivables 81 13
REBMER ZRER Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of
18ZEM/(£2(a]) stock of course materials 35 (132)
HEMZE IR R BN Gain on disposal of property, plant and
BE equipment (27) (10)
ITEER Depreciation charge 140,590 127,038
EREEEZINEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 23,985 13,706
EEESETRIZRER Surplus before changes in working capital 496,975 639,127
SRIEBMEFEZ ()AL (Increase)/decrease in stock of course materials (110) 49
FEUERR~ ELth FEUBR RN Decrease in accounts receivable, other
FERIEREE 2R receivables, prepayments and deposits 10,981 148,807
FAWE RN E 21BN Increase in fee income receipt in advance 177,851 23,513
ZIEEENRARER B8  Decrease in various donations income receipts
ZiR and utilisation, net (27,537) (13,386)
FE(IRFCFEETE BN (Decrease)/increase in accounts payable,
(iR /4810 accrued expenses and provisions (5,383) 77,490
EIRBFSZIRE Cash generated from operations 652,777 875,600
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37. MEHEEEN (4) Cash flow information (continued)
37.2 REREEEZ & EHIRE Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

FHE &1E Lease liabilities

HE—S"=fF BHEZZC
J\B=+—H J\B=+—H
J12:3:; IbFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $'000
HEVZ 48R Balance as at beginning of the financial year 116,327 7,768
S New leases 9,360 119,629
HEaENFISEE  Interest portion of lease liabilities 2,067 852
RMERERE Financing cash flows (21,774) (11,922)
RERZHEER Balance as at end of the financial year 105,980 116,327

38. RANS XS Related party transactions
38.1 BFAFIN3ZH Transactions with subsidiaries

RER RBERNBR - PEBA-BAMELABRRA O BAAREERLEBMLEELREAERERGETTUTEKX
X5

During the year, the following significant transactions with MU-Shenzhen, MU-China, HKMUPC, HKMU-RDC and HKMUAA were
undertaken by the University:

HE—S"=fF BHEZZ
J\B=+—H J\B=+—H
JI2:3:; b
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $'000
W FATFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,974 5,539
S FRBFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 52,316 1,852
Administrative service fee expenses to
TR &R a subsidiary 121
Academic service fee income from
BIERBEBA a subsidiary 6

BANRERFARRERERZER BRI - B IRBERBEETUBEAENRBE-BKFRARRERE A
B R IE TREY AT Bk

Amounts due to/from subsidiaries are related to business operations, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no past due or default payment history to amounts due from subsidiaries.

FEBFATIMNRZHRERRE A HERENIGERET
The above transactions with subsidiaries were conducted based on the terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.
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38. RANS S (48) Related party transactions (continued)

38.2 FEEIEASMEE Key management personnel compensation

WABTEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

EENIEEBRAESREAE I RERENEENSREEH LERENEENSEEEAS EMSNT:

The key management of the Group refers to those senior management having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group and their compensations are analysed as follows:

gE—ZT=-= BEZZ-C
NA=+—H J\B=+—H
IEEEFE WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31st August 2023 31st August 2022
$’000 $’000
e KB Salaries and allowances 53,426 51,812
BELHRATEIFMHI  Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes 359 361
B SN EE Provision for gratuities 5,200 5,469
58,985 57,642
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39. REFAEARRNEATEHREPTR

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University

39.1 KZBEFEHRR Balance sheet of the University

ERENEE
REME
ME- R RRE
B EE
EREEE
FRERE
PR B EERR
BB AN ERIRE

REEE
REHMER
FEWF RBFRIEA
FEUERTR ~ EL A PR R
FANTRIEREE
PR EER
BBEE R RRATE
B NREESMEE
TTEESREE
RN ERIRE
REARBE=EA
ZIRITER
REXIREEEY

mEnEE
AR Bk E
S FARRE
FE(TRRFRFEET B A R
s

IRSE Iz
B EMEEE RIS
*ﬂﬁﬁfg /m.anBﬁ

REEETER

BEEARHEME
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Student loan receivables

Financial investments at amortised cost

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock of course materials

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Accounts receivable, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Student loan receivables

Designated financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Financial investments at amortised cost

Bank deposits with original maturities over

three months
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Fee income receipt in advance

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
provisions

Deferred income

Current portion of gratuities provision

Current portion of lease liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

LAt

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

K-8Z-= i
INB=+—H NB=+—H
At 31st August 2023 At 31st August 2022
$’000 $°000
126,274 129,444
1,924,892 1,913,273
99,368 113,810
59,000 9,000
64,883 58,518
- 16,909
2,274,417 2,240,954
2,726 2,650
11,974 5,539
152,388 143,084
11,311 6,185
2,042,882 1,948,438
1,741 1,251
21,445 3,840
1,936,230 521,471
1,149,541 2,028,372
5,330,238 4,660,830
793,619 615,487
52,316 1,852
270,434 277,709
232,699 225,653
18,228 32,300
23,481 18,746
1,390,777 1,171,747
3,939,461 3,489,083
6,213,878 5,730,037
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39. ABHERRRRASEHREDR ()

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University (continued)

39.1 KBEERER (4) Balance sheet of the University (continued)

WB=E==% s =
JNB=+—H J\NB=+—8H
Mtk At31stAugust2023 At 31st August 2022
Note $’000 $°000

JERBER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB Gratuities provision 32,403 16,502
BHHEIRIFER Government loans, secured 464,005 453,700
HEaE Lease liabilities 82,499 97,582
RIS ANES Deferred capital fund 608,977 649,472
1,187,884 1,217,256
BEEEE TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,025,994 4,512,781

HER REPRESENTED BY

ERHfES FUNDS AND RESERVES 39.2 5,025,994 4,512,781

REG:“F-_=F+_AtHAZENLEEARER
Approved by the Council on 7th December 2023

BREEE WErERIE HEREAE
Mr Arnold CHENG Ka-kui Professor Paul LAM Kwan-sing Mr Raymond CHIU Chi-wai

i) RE& Eup
CESE President Director of Finance
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2022-2023 B4#5#R* Financial Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. ABHAERRRRASEHREDR (F)

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University (continued)

Balance as at 1st September 2021
(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Reallocation of funds

Balance as at 31st August 2022

Balance as at 1st September 2022
(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Reallocation of funds

Balance as at 31st August 2023

39.2 KBEELREFHR Statement of changes in fund balances of the University

DETTHEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

SERES —RR (S
Specific General 4H%E
funds reserve Total
$’ 000 $’ 000 $’ 000
325,491 3,986,327 4,311,818
(41,836) 242,799 200,963
17,395 (17,395) =
301,050 4,211,731 4,512,781
301,050 4,211,731 4,512,781
(7,518) 520,731 513,213
8,041 (8,041) -
301,573 4,724,421 5,025,994




RERER
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1. BESHETF Student Statistics

LBTTEE
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

(i) FHBEAZ (i) Average student headcount
-BOHRE - Credit Bearing Programmes
- BRI - Distance Learning Programmes
(ERER M L BER2) (DL & e-Learning Programmes)
- EIE R - Face-to-face Programmes
-BRE2D N - QF Credit Bearing and Non-Credit
TMEBRHRE Bearing Programmes
(i) BEFMBHARE (i) Total student credits
(IR 48 2 22:512) (DL & e-Learning Programmes)

(i) BRBEFHIEMBES
(ERER A EHSR2)

2. 2% Tuition Fee

(iii) Average credit per student

(DL & e-Learning Programmes)

(i) BBR(EBTT (i) By school ($ million)
- AXAL g R - School of A&SS
- FIREmEETEE - Lee Shau Kee School of B&A
- B2 - School of S&T
- RIE N REREARR - School of N&HS
- HEMEXER - School of E&L
- FEHEREESR - LiPACE
- B2HE% - Total Tuition Fee
(i) ¥&FRER(EERT) (i) By category ($ million)

- BoRRE - Credit Bearing Programmes
- EEERTE - Distance Learning Programmes
- EEHRE - Face-to-face Programmes
- BEBSN - QF Credit Bearing and Non-Credit
M™MEEHRE Bearing Programmes
- BB - Total Tuition Fee

(iii) SRBETHEE(T)

(iii) Average fee per student ($)

- BORR - Credit Bearing Programmes
- EEERR - Distance Learning Programmes
- EEHRE - Face-to-face Programmes
(ES=] (Undergraduate Full-time
FIEBLA%E) Equivalent only)
- BEBSN - QF Credit Bearing and Non-Credit
M™MEEHRE Bearing Programmes

(iv) S25F9RHE(T)
- EIERE

(iv) Average fee per credit ($)

- Distance Learning Programmes

2022/23

Vs

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
%

8,310 7,541 6,522 -13.5%
11,112 11,731 12,298 4.8%
33,999 29,372 30,500 3.8%
186,210 170,667 146,976 -13.9%
22.4 22.6 22.5 -0.4%
2022/23

Vs

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
%

312.3 287.1 283.9 -1.1%
396.6 417.4 418.7 0.3%
155.8 256.8 220.6 -14.1%
267.9 363.9 422.3 16.0%
144.1 139.2 124.4 -10.6%
165.7 159.2 156.3 -1.9%
1,442.4 1,623.6 1,626.2 0.2%
229.7 220.4 191.8 -13.0%
1,043.6 12412 12746 2.7%
169.1 162.0 159.8 -1.4%
14424 16236 16262 0.2%
27,647 29,227 29,408 0.6%
93,287 99,338 101,663 2.3%
4973 5,515 5,236 -5.1%
1,234 1,291 1,305 1.1%
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

2. 2% (48) Tuition Fee (Continued)

EIERE
Distance Learning Programmes

110,000

100,000

90,000

80,000

70,000

60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

HERE (U BHBELREBESE)

Face-to-face Programmes

(Undergraduate Full-time Equivalent only)

BEEBDRAEEDRE

QF Credit Bearing and Non-Credit Bearing Programmes

2022-2023 B4#5#R% Financial Report

BRBEZEE ()
Tuition Fee Per Student ($)

DETTHEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2020/21

27,647

93,287

4,973

2021/22

29,227

99,338

5,515

2022/23

29,408

101,663

5,236



E iy ] are
llﬁ H15 Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

/ PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

3. Bi% Expenditure
2022/23
Vs
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23  2021/22
%

(i) SREBHFE (i) Operating cost for full-time
BEZEE equivalent student for
B (7T) credit bearing programmes ($)
- HiERA - Direct Cost 30,034 33,110 38,423 16.0%
- FEER A - Indirect Cost 31,261 34,610 43,173 24.7%
- 48RS - Total Cost 61,295 67,720 81,59 20.5%
(i) EtEsRR (BET) (i) Result for Other Activities ($ million) (12.0) (11.9) (30.5) 155.9%
(iii) FH2RAH (iii) Average course population
- EFERRE - Distance Learning Programmes 61.0 50.6 49.5 -2.2%
- AR - Face-to-face Programmes 98.4 94.5 88.3 -6.6%
(iv) EERAHBENTRE (iv) % of operating costs to tuition fee
-BHiRE - Credit Bearing Programmes 71.0% 68.6% T7.7% 13.2%
-BRE2D KR - QF Credit Bearing and Non-Credit
RMEE R Bearing Programmes 75.0% 79.2% 81.8% 3.3%
-HEERE - Total 71.5% 69.7% 78.1% 12.1%

4, HEESREZ Staff Cost
2022/23
Vs
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
%

(i) Z2BHHEAH (i) No of full-time staff
(FetEEERS) (exclude project staff) 964.0 987.0 1,112.0 12.7%
(i) #EN4e%E (B&T)! (i) Total Payroll ($ million)’
HIEAD Academic Staff
- EEm - Tutor 42.6 42.8 42.0 -1.9%
- BREE - Course Co-ordinators 335.6 333.9 371.2 11.2%
378.2 376.7 413.2 9.7%
RN REHE Dean & School staff 99.3 113.8 137.1 20.5%
THAE Admin Staff 262.5 270.1 298.8 10.6%
EREF RS Temporary Staff 64.4 70.0 63.9 -8.7%
FSES Total 804.4 830.6 913.0 9.9%
(iil) HRAERAHEHHE (iii) % of academic staff costs to
DN RS total staff costs 47.0% 45.4% 45.3% -0.2%
(iv) S A EH4RRZ Y (iv) % of staff costs to total

BOX expenditure 65.5% 62.8% 60.7% -3.5%




iy ] Jupes
IIE BT Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

5. Hfth Others

SEEAEEFATNERBERGZZRIEA (BEET)
Group's Net Result Before Interest and Investment Income for the Year ($ million)

550.0

498.5
500.0
450.0
400.0
350.0
300.0
250.0

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
KEEZFEEERR (B8T)
Group's Operating Result for the Year ($ million)

550.0

510.4
L
T
L S - red G edd6 i o e

362.8

LT e M I, G e B
300.0

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

5.

Hith (48) Others (continued)

fTEB & Administrative Expenses

B> Academic Expenses

BRBEZHX% (D)
Expenditure Per Student ($)

RI#Z 7 Indirect Cost

B A7 Direct Cost

f& =% Note:
1. il ga e @RS MEMEESREX-

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

WSS
Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2020/21

39.3%

60.7%

BHETHAXEED K
Expenditure Allocation Between Academic and Administration

2021/22

38.9%

61.1%

Bo8RiE
Credit Bearing Programmes

2022/23

39.9%

60.1%

2020/21

31,261

30,034

2021/22

34,610

33,110

Total payroll includes both operating expenditure and expenditure in other activities.

2022/23

43,173

38,423
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